SABKA VISHWAS (LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION) SCHEME 2019



COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

(Statutory body under an Act of Parliament) www.icmai.in

Vision Statement

"The Institute of Cost Accountants of India would be the preferred source of resources and professionals for the financial leadership of enterprises globally."

Mission Statement

"The Cost and Management Accountant professionals would ethically drive enterprises globally by creating value to stakeholders in the socioeconomic context through competencies drawn from the integration of strategy, management and accounting"

Objectives of Taxation Committee:

- 1. Preparation of Suggestions and Analysis of various Tax matters for best Management Practices and for the professional development of the members of the Institute in the field of Taxation.
- 2. Conducting webinars, seminars and conferences etc. on various taxation related matters as per relevance to the profession and use by various stakeholders.
- 3. Submit representations to the Ministry from time to time for the betterment and financial inclusion of the Economy.
- 4. Evaluating opportunities for CMAs to make way for further development and sustenance of the opportunities.
- 5. Conducting and monitoring of Certificate Courses on Direct and Indirect Tax for members, practitioners and stakeholders.

SABKA VISHWAS (LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION) SCHEME 2019



COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA

(Statutory body under an Act of Parliament) www.icmai.in Edition: October, 2019

Published by

The President The Institute of Cost Accountants of India CMA Bhawan 12, Sudder Street, Kolkata - 700016

Delhi Office

CMA Bhawan 3, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi – 110003

The Institute of Cost Accountants of India

(Statutory body under an Act of Parliament)

© All rights reserved

Disclaimer:

This Publication does not constitute professional advice. The information in this publication has been obtained or derived from sources believed by the Institute of Cost Accountants of India (ICAI) to be reliable. Any opinions or estimates contained in this publication represent the judgment of ICAI at this time. Readers of his publication are advised to seek their own professional advice before taking any course of action or decision, for which they are entirely responsible, based on the contents of this publication. ICAI neither accepts nor assumes any responsibility or liability to any reader for this publication in respect of the information contained within it or for any decisions reader may take or decide not to or fail to take.



President's Message

I am pleased to note that the Tax Research Department is publishing this handbook on "Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019". I congratulate CMA Niranjan Mishra, Chairman of Indirect Taxation Committee and eminent authors as well as Team Tax Research Department for their efforts and support in releasing this handbook.

The Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 is a one-time measure for resolving of past disputes of Central Excise and Service Tax as well as to ensure disclosure of unpaid taxes by a person eligible to make a declaration.

The scheme comes with a validity of 4 months starting from September 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. It provides a facility to an eligible person to declare the unpaid tax dues and pay the same as per provisions of this scheme;. It further provides for certain immunities including penalty, interest or any other proceedings under the Central Excise Act, 1944 or Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1944 to those persons who pay the declared tax dues.

CBIC has come up with various provisions of reliefs to those taxpayers whose cases regarding Central Excise / Services Tax are pending

- Show cause notice (SCN) / appeal pending as on 30.06.2019
- 70% of the tax dues shall be waived off if the amount of duty is Rs. 50 lakhs or less,
- 50% of the tax dues shall be waived off if the amount of duty is more than Rs. 50 lakhs
- > 100% of the amount of late fee or penalty shall be waived off if SCN issued only with respect to late fee/penalty, and tax amount is paid or NIL
- > Amount relating to arrears of tax or amount indicated in returns but not paid
- 60% of the tax dues shall be waived off if the amount of duty is Rs. 50 lakhs or less
- 40% of the tax dues shall be waived off if the amount of duty is more than Rs. 50 lakhs

Beside this, few more reliefs have been provided to Taxpayers also.

I am sure this handbook will act as Torchlight for the assesses who intend to settle the cases under "Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019" and I am hopeful that this scheme will result in significant reduction in pending litigations under central excise/service tax regime.

With Warm Regards,

CMA Balwinder Singh 24th October 2019



CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

"Your work is going to fill a large part of your life, and the only way to be truly satisfied is to do what you believe is great work. And the only way to do great work is to love what you do".

-Steve jobs

At the outset, I would like to acknowledge the superlative input of Tax Research Department in publishing a Handbook on "Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution Scheme 2019).

The Sabka Vishwas Scheme, 2019, proposed in the Union Budget, 2019, has been introduced to resolve all disputes relating to the erstwhile Service Tax and Central Excise Acts, which are now subsumed under GST and to provide substantial relief to the taxpayers who wish to close their pending disputes. This scheme has come into force from 1st of September, 2019, and shall be operational till 31st of December, 2019.

This scheme offers several lucrative resolution benefits to taxpayers, such as-

- Taxpayers can pay the outstanding tax amounts due and be free from any other consequences under the Law.
- Taxpayers will get substantial relief in the form of full waivers of interest, penalties and fines.
- There will be complete amnesty from prosecution proceedings.

I would like to praise Mr. Pawan K. Pahwa and Mr. Mukesh Pandey for their untiring efforts for this publication and congratulate entire Team - Tax Research Department for this excellent job. My best wishes to Team TRD for all future undertakings.

Hope, the members and stakeholders will get benefit of this Handbook.

Wish you a happy and safe Diwali.

Thank You

200800

CMA Niranjan Mishra Chairman – Indirect Taxation Committee 24th October 2019

PREFACE

It has been more than two years since introduction of Goods and Services inter alia subsuming central excise and services tax laws and still huge litigation is pending related to legacy taxes at various forums. With the objective to free large segment of the taxpayers from the legacy taxes, the Hon'ble Finance Minister in her first maiden budget speech on 5th July, 2019 announced one of the largest dispute resolution and amnesty scheme called 'Sabka Vishwas-Legacy Dispute Resolution Scheme, 2019'.

It gives us immense pleasure to write a book on "Sabka Vishwas-Legacy Dispute Resolution Scheme, 2019". This book is an effort to provide detailed analysis of provisions of scheme so as to find out the impact of the scheme on the taxpayers and is an effort to resolve the questions in the mind of the stakeholders about the scheme.

We hope that this book will help the professionals in advising their clients or making decision in their organizations for opting for the scheme in respect of legacy tax matters.

Here , we would also like to thank and acknowledge the immense contributions of **Mr. Pawan K. Pahwa and Mr. Mukesh Pandey** without whose hard work , toil and guidance this handbook could have never acquired this shape. The department is indebted to them for their contribution.

CMA Niranjan Mishra has been our guiding star. Thank you Sir.

Tax Research Department

The Institute of Cost Accountants of India

24th October 2019

A C K N O W L E D G E M E N T S

Indirect Taxation Committee

CMA Balwinder Singh - President CMA Biswarup Basu - Vice-President CMA Niranjan Mishra - Chairman

Members

CMA Rakesh Bhalla CMA P. Raju Iyer CMA V. Murali CMA H. Padmanabhan CMA (Dr.) Ashish P. Thatte CMA B.M. Sharma (Co-Opted) CMA (Dr.) Sanjay Bhargave (Co-Opted) CMA V.S. Datey (Co-Opted)

Secretary

CMA Rajat Kumar Basu, Addl. Director

Team - Tax Research Department

CMA Rajat Kumar BasuAdditional Director - Tax ResearchCA Neelesh JainDeputy Director - Tax ResearchCMA Priyanka RoyAssistant Director - Tax ResearchMs. Mukulika PoddarOfficer - Tax ResearchCMA Debasmita JanaAssociate - Tax Research

Contents

Chapter	Particulars	Page No.
1	Introduction	01 - 06
2	Scope of LDR Scheme	07 - 12
3	Situations/cases covered under the Scheme	13 - 26
4	Tax dues and Tax Relief	27 - 36
5	Amount payable and Immunities under the	37 - 42
	LDR Scheme	
6	Miscellaneous Provisions	43 - 46
7	Procedure for availing the Scheme	47 - 56
8	Issues/ Grey Areas	57 - 62
9	Finance Act, 2019	63 - 86
10	LDR Rules	87 - 92
11	CBI&C Circular dated 27th August, 2019	93 - 104
12	CBI&C Circular dated 25th September, 2019	105 - 110
13	Frequently asked questions	111 - 126



INTRODUCTION

The Indian taxation system has witnessed various amnesty schemes introduced by the Government to lure tax evaders. The schemes offered payment of lesser tax against the actual liability. The Service Tax Voluntary Compliance Encouragement Scheme, 2013 and the Kar Vivad Samadhan Scheme, 1998 are two such schemes of the Central Government in this regard.

It is seen that the tax amnesty schemes at time brings resentment and discouragement in the minds of the honest taxpayers who feels defrauded as they end up paying more taxes and the tax evaders get away while paying lesser taxes. Given this, constitutional validity of such schemes have been challenged before the Courts in the past. Here reference could be made to the case of RK Garg and Ors. Vs. Union of India and Ors.[(1981)4 SCC 675]wherein the Special Bearer Bonds (Immunities and Exception) Act, 1981 was challenged on the ground that the said act neglected and discouraged the tax abiding citizens by supporting tax evaders by providing them immunities and exemptions. The Supreme Court rejected the contention and held that

"those who have successfully evaded taxation and concealed their income or wealth despite the stringent tax laws and the efforts of the tax department are not likely to disclose their unaccounted money without some inducement by way of immunities and exemptions and it must necessarily be left to the legislature to decide what immunities and exemption would be sufficient for the purpose."

The Union Finance Minister Nirmala Sitharamanrecently on the

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



footprints of various states such as Maharasshtra, Karnatka, West Bengal etc to unload the baggage of the pending litigations under erstwhile State VAT, CST and entry tax laws, in her maiden budget speech on 5 July 2019 proposed the Sabka Vishwas(Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019 ("LDR Scheme"). The intention of the LDR Scheme is evident from the Budget speech of the Finance Minister wherein she stated that

"GST has just completed two years. An area that concerns me is that we have huge pending litigations from pre-GST regime. More than Rs 3.75 lakh crore is blocked in litigations in service tax and excise. There is need to unload this baggage and allow business to move on. I, therefore, propose, a Legacy Dispute Resolution Scheme that will allow quick closure of these litigations. I would urge the trade and business to avail this opportunity and be free from legacy litigation.

The LDR Scheme is a one-time measure for liquidation of past disputes of Central Excise, Service Tax and certain other indirect taxes as well as to ensure disclosure of unpaid taxes by a person eligible to make a declaration. The scheme besides granting tax relief also provides for certain immunities including penalty, interest or any other proceedings to those persons who pay the declared tax dues. The scheme started from 1stSeptember, 2019 and shall be available to all the taxpayers who have filed the declaration till 31st December 2019.

The LDR Scheme has the two main components, namely:

- 1. **Dispute Resolution:** The LDR Scheme aim at off loading the legacy cases blocked in litigation at variousforums and liquidating the taxes blocked in such litigations.
- Amnesty: LDR Scheme provides opportunity to taxpayers who have failed to correctly discharge their tax liability under the erstwhile tax laws to discharge such tax dues resultantly adding to the revenue collections of the Centre which may
- 2 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



escape the eyes of the authorities as the tax machinery is occupied with the new indirect tax legislation ie GST

LDR Scheme covers pending litigation at show cause notice stage, appellate stage from first appellate authority till Supreme Court and even extendsto arrears ie where the case has been decided against the tax payer and has attained finality. The cases covered under the LDR Scheme include:

- 1. a show cause notice or an appeal where the final hearing has not concluded on or before June 30, 2019;
- amount in arrears i.e. tax demand upheld vide an order against which no appeal has been preferred and the limitation period has expired or an order which has attained finality;
- an enquiry, investigation or audit where the tax amount is quantified and communicated to the taxpayer on or before June 30, 2019; and
- 4. a voluntary disclosure

The LDR Scheme, typically, cannot be opted by a tax payer who:

- has filed an appeal before appellate forum and final hearing concluded on or before 30. 06.2019;
- has been convicted under Indirect tax enactment for any offence for the matter for which he intends to file a declaration;
- has been issued a show cause notice ('SCN') and final hearing has already taken place on or before 30.06.2019;
- has been issued a SCN for an erroneous refund;
- has been subjected to enquiry or investigation or audit and amount of duty not quantified on or before 30.06.2019;
- has filed an application in the Settlement Commission for settlement of a case;

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 3



- intends to file a declaration with respect to excisable goods which are petroleum, tobacco and related tobacco products as mentioned in the Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944;
- makes a voluntary disclosure after being subjected to enquiry or investigation or audit or having filed a return, wherein he has indicated an amount of duty as payable, but has not paid it.

Situation to avail Relief	Amount of Tax Dues	Relief from Tax dues
Show cause notice or appeals	Upto Fifty Lakhs	70%
arising out of such notice which is pending as on the 30th June 2019	> Fifty Lakhs	50%
In case of an enquiry, investi-	Upto Fifty Lakhs	70%
gation or audit against the tax payer if the amount is quanti- fied on or before the 30th June 2019	> Fifty Lakhs	50%
Voluntary disclosure by the Tax payer	No limit	NIL
Where tax arrears are payable	Upto Fifty Lakhs	60%
or where tax payable is report- ed in returns but not paid	> Fifty Lakhs	40%

Relief available under LDR Scheme is tabulated below:

LDR Scheme also grants complete immunity from interest, penalty and prosecution under the erstwhile indirect tax laws.

As the objective of the Scheme is to free as large a segment of the taxpayers from the legacy taxes as possible, the relief given thereunder is substantial. The Scheme is especially tailored to free the large number of small taxpayers of their pending disputes



with the tax administration.

It is noteworthy that there are certain restrictions on the availment of the LDR Scheme which inter-alia includes the following:

- Tax dues payable shall not be paid through input tax credit account;
- Tax dues paid shall not be taken as input tax credit or entitle any person to take input tax credit as a recipient of excisable goods or taxable services;
- Tax dues paid shall not be refundable under any circumstances.

Further, the procedure for availing the benefit under the LDR Scheme is provided under Sabka Vishwas Legacy Dispute Resolution Scheme Rules, 2019 ("LDR Rules"). The process under the Scheme involves filing an electronic declaration by the taxpayer, stating the details of their case and the amount of relief available to them. The declaration is evaluated by the Designated Committee ("DC"), which is a body comprising of senior officers of Central Excise and Service Tax, responsible for administering the Scheme. In case there is any difference between the amount quantified by the taxpayer/ declarant and the amount as evaluated by the DC, an opportunity is granted to the taxpayer to make submission to support the declaration/ amount quantified by him. The statement of final amount payable by the taxpayer is issued by the DC. Thereafter, on being satisfied that the amount payable as mentioned in the statement is paid and the case pending before High Court or Supreme Court has been withdrawn, the DC shall issue a discharge certificate to the taxpayer.

The author believes that this is an opportunity for the taxpayers to bring an end to their pending litigation or settle the arears of tax dues. Taxpayers should review the pending cases explore the possibility to opt for the Scheme. This would be helpful for the taxpayers to start a fresh with a clean slate in the new tax regime.





SCOPE OF LDR SCHEME

- 2.1 Scope of the SVLDRS
- 2.1.1 Section 122 of the Finance Act, 2019("Finance Act") provides that the scheme shall be applicable to the indirect tax enactments. Thus the Direct Tax enactments such as Income Tax Act, 1961, Wealth Tax Act, 1957 or other Direct tax statutes are not covered under the scope of this scheme.
- 2.1.2 The objective of Government behind bringing LDR Scheme is to clear the pending disputes related to indirect tax statutes (governed and controlled by the Central Government) which are now subsumed under Goods and Services Tax (GST) Law so that assessee as well as revenue department could focus on the compliance of GST Law. This objective of the government clearly reflects from the speech of Hon'ble Finance Minister, Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman, while presenting the Budget for 2019-20 along with the Finance Bill, 2019 in the Parliament on 05th July 2019. The Hon'ble Finance Minister in her speech has said that:

"141. GST has just completed two years. An area that concerns me is that we have huge pending litigations from pre-GST regime. More than 3.75 lakh crore is blocked in litigations in service tax and excise. There is a need to unload this baggage and allow business to move on. I, therefore, propose, a Legacy Dispute Resolution Scheme that will allow quick closure of these litigations. I would



urge the trade and business to avail this opportunity and be free from legacy litigations."

2.1.3 As per Section 124 of the Finance Act, the LDR Scheme provides relief in respect of 'tax dues'. The term 'tax dues' is defined in Section 123 of the Finance Act to mean 'amount of duty' disputed in appeal pending on or before 30th June, 2019 or 'amount of duty' proposed in the show cause notice issued on or before 30th June, 2019 or 'amount of duty' quantified under any audit investigation or inquiry on or before 30th June, 2019 or 'amount of duty' recoverable as an arrears. Now, the definition of 'tax dues' under provided Section 123 of the Finance Act refers to the term 'amount of duty' which is defined under clause (d) of Section 121 of the Finance Act, to read as follows:

(d) "amount of duty" means the amount of central excise duty, the service tax and the cess payable under the indirect tax enactment;

- 2.1.4 Thus, from the above, it transpires that the Scope of the LDR Scheme is limited to the disputes related Service Tax, central Excise and Cess leviable under different Indirect Tax statutes mentioned under section 122 of the Finance Act. Hence, the disputes related to customs duty leviable under Customs Act, 1962 (52 of 1962) or Custom Tariff Act, 1975 (51 of 1975) are not covered under this scheme.
- 2.1.5 The Scheme deals with almost every kind of case related to duty/taxes payable under the Indirect tax statues mentioned in Section 122 of the Chapter V of Finance Act whether such cases are at the enquiry stage, Show Cause Notice stage or at the Appellate stage, except few cases which are under exclusions. The LDR Scheme is also applicable on the arrears amount i.e. amount of duty become recoverable due to non filing of appeal or the



Appeal having attained finality (matter decided by highest forum) or the assesse has shown the liability in returns wherein he admitted its liability but has not paid. Therefore, the scope and the coverage of this scheme is very wide as compared to the earlier dispute resolution scheme brought by the Government whether it is Karsamadhan Scheme, 1998 or Voluntary Compliance Encouragement scheme, 2013 or Dispute Resolution Scheme, 2016.

- 2.2 Statutes covered under the Scheme
- 2.2.1 The Indirect Tax Statutes covered under Section 122 of Chapter V of the Finance Act, 2019 on which the scheme is applicable are, namely
 - i. The Central Excise Act, 1944 and rules made thereunder
 - ii. The Central Excise Tariff Act, 1985 and rules made thereunder
 - iii. Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 (Service Tax) and the rules made there under;
 - iv. The Agricultural Produce Cess Act, 1940;
 - v. The Coffee Act, 1942;
 - vi. The Mica Mines Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1946;
 - vii. The Rubber Act, 1947;
 - viii. The Salt Cess Act, 1953;
 - ix. The Medicinal and Toilet Preparations (Excise Duties) Act, 1955;
 - x. The Additional Duties of Excise (Goods of Special Importance) Act, 1957;
 - xi. The Mineral Products (Additional Duties of Excise

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 9



and Customs) Act, 1958;

- xii. The Sugar (Special Excise Duty) Act, 1959;
- xiii. The Textiles Committee Act, 1963;
- xiv. The Produce Cess Act, 1966;
- xv. The Limestone and Dolomite Mines Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1972;
- xvi. The Coal Mines (Conservation and Development) Act, 1974;
- xvii. The Oil Industry (Development) Act, 1974;
- xviii. The Tobacco Cess Act, 1975;
- xix. The Iron Ore Mines, Manganese Ore Mines and Chrome Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Act, 1976;
- xx. The Bidi Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1976;
- xxi. The Additional Duties of Excise (Textiles and Textile Articles) Act, 1978;
- xxii. The Sugar Cess Act, 1982;
- xxiii. The Jute Manufacturers Cess Act, 1983;
- xxiv. The Agricultural and Processed Food Products Export Cess Act, 1985;
- xxv. The Spices Cess Act, 1986;
- xxvi. The Finance Act, 2004 (Education Cess) ;
- xxvii. The Finance Act, 2007 (Secondary Higher Education Cess) ;
- xxviii. The Finance Act, 2015 (Swachh Bharat Cess);
- xxix. The Finance Act, 2016 (Krishi Kalyan Cess);
- 10 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



- xxx. Any other Act, as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify.
- 2.2.2 The perusal of Section 122 of the Finance Act shows that the Government has covered almost all the indirect tax enactments under which central excise duty, services tax or Cesses were leviable, in the scope of the scheme. However, there are still certain enactments which have not been considered for purpose of the scheme such as Finance Act, 2001 (National Calamity contingent duty), Finance Act, 2005 (Additional duty on Pan masala and certain other products), Finance Act, 2010 (Clean Energy Cess/ Clean Environment Cess), Additional duty of excise leviable on motor Sprit (Petrol) and additional duty of excise leviable on High Speed Diesel Oil etc.
- 2.3 Date of applicability of the scheme
- 2.3.1 Sub Section 2 of Section 120 of the Finance Act provides that the LDR Scheme shall be operational from the date of issuance of Notification in the Official Gazette. The LDR Scheme is made applicable with effect from 1stSeptember, 2019 vide Notification No. 05/2019 Central Excise (NT) dated 21.08.2019. As per clause 3 of the said Notification the LDR Scheme shall be operational till 31st December, 2019. Thus the last date for filing of declaration under the scheme is 31st December, 2019.



CHAPTER 03

SITUATIONS/CASES COVERED UNDER THE SCHEME

- 3.1 Type of Cases covered under the scheme
- 3.1.1 Rule 3 of the LDR Rules read with Section 125 of the Finance Act provides that a taxpayer has to file an application in Form SVLDRS-1 to avail the benefit under the LDR Scheme. Further, as per Sub Rule 3 of Rule 3 of the LDR Rules separate declaration is required to be filed for each 'case'. The term 'case' is defined under explanation provided in Rule 3 of LDR Rules which classifies the term 'case' under four different categories as enumerated below:
 - (a) a show cause notice (SCN), or one or more appeals arising out of such notice which is pending as on the 30thJune, 2019; or
 - (b) an amount in arrears; or
 - (c) an enquiry or investigation or audit where the amount is quantified on or before the 30th June, 2019; or
 - (d) a voluntary disclosure.

Any taxpayer falling under the above mentioned categories shall be eligible to file a declaration under the Scheme, subject to other conditions/restrictions.

3.1.2 Case means a Show Cause Notice, or, one or more appeal arising out of such notice which is pending as on the 30th June, 2019:

This category covers the cases where show cause notice

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 13



issued to the taxpayer is pending for adjudication or appeal filed by the taxpayer before the Appellate forum is pending as on 30.06.2019. Accordingly, any Show Cause Notice issued after 30.06.2019 or any case wherein, the taxpayer has filed appeal after 30.06.2019 is not covered under this category.

The term 'case' here denote to a show cause notice or one or more appeals arising out of such Show Cause Notices. This demonstrates that in case taxpayer has been issued two show cause notices then both Show Cause Notices are to be treated as separate case and separate declaration in respect of each Show Cause Notice is required to be filed by the taxpayer. Further, ineligibility to file declaration in respect of one Show Cause Notice would not restrict the taxpayer from filing declaration in any other Show Cause Notice. This aspect has also been clarified by Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs ("CBI&C")vide Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX. 8 dated 27.08.2019. The relevant Para of the said Circular is reproduced below:

"It is clarified that the exception from eligibility is for 'the case' and not 'the person'. In other words if a person has been issued a Show Cause Notice for a refund / erroneous refund and at the same time, he also has other outstanding disputes which are covered under the scheme, then, he will be eligible to file a declaration(s) for the other cases".

Further, where a Show Cause Notice contains multiple issues, in such case taxpayer shall have to file declaration for all the issues covered under the Show Cause Notice. It is not open for the taxpayer to avail the benefit of the LDR Scheme for part portion of a Show Cause Notice. This aspect has also been clarified by the CBI&C vide Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX. 8 dated 27.08.2019.



Separately, any order passed in a case either favors taxpayer or revenue department and the party which is dissatisfied from such order files appeal against the said order. However, in some cases where the order provides partial relief to the taxpayer, a situation arises where both revenue department and taxpayer could file an appeal. In such case if both the taxpayer and the revenue department has preferred appeal against a common order then for the purpose of LDR Scheme, both the appeals shall be treated as one case.

3.1.3 Case means an amount in arrears:

The term 'arrears' generally refers to an amount which could not be paid by due date and recoverable. For the purpose of LDR Scheme, the term 'amount in Arrears' has been defined under clause (c) of Section 122 of the Finance Act. As per clause (c) of Section 122 of the Finance Act the term 'amount in arrears' means any amount which is recoverable as arrears of duty under the indirect tax enactment, on account of following reasons:

 (i) no appeal having been filed by the declarant against an order or an order in appeal before expiry of the period of time for filing appeal:

As per this clause, where any amount become payable due to non filing of appeal before the appellate authority within due time i.e. before the expiry of the time period allowed for filing such Appeal, the same shall be considered as arrear for the purpose of this scheme.

Here question arises that where a person has filed an appeal after the expiry of the time period for filing the appeal along with application for condonation of delay, whether such cases would be covered under definition of arrear or not?



In view of the author, this clause covers all those cases under its ambit in which appeal has not filed within the statutory time period of filing the Appeal. Given this, even though the appeal is filed along with application for condonation of delay, the same shall be considered as a case of arrear, as the same is filed after the expiry of time period for filing the Appeal. However, once the Appellate Authority has condoned the delay in fling the Appeal, the said appeal shall be deemed to be filed within the statutory time limit and such case shall cease to fall within the ambit of arrears.

(ii) an order in appeal relating to the declarant attaining finality:

This clause covers such cases which have finally been decided and no further appeal can be preferred in such case. For example cases decided by the Hon'ble Supreme Court.

(iii) the declarant having filed a return under the indirect tax enactment on or before 30th June, 2019, wherein he has admitted a tax liability but not paid it :

This sub clause is applicable to the taxpayer who has declared its tax liability in the service tax returns or central excise returns on or before 30.06.2019 but has failed to deposit the tax/duty so declared in the return.

In case tax payer has not paid the tax liability in respect of multiple returns, tax payable in respect of each return shall be treated as separate case and the taxpayer shall be required to file separate declaration for tax liability in respect of each return. The said position has been clarified by the CBI&C vide Circular No. 1072/05/2019-CX dated 25.09.2019.



3.1.4 An enquiry or investigation or audit where the amount is quantified on or before the 30th June, 2019 :

The cases pending Enquiry, investigation or audit level were not covered under the amnesty schemes issued earlier. However, for cases to be covered under Scheme is that during the course of enquiry, investigation or audit, the tax/duty amount has been quantified on or before 30th June 2019. The term 'quantified' is defined under clause (r) of Section 121 of the Finance Act which reads as follows:

(r) "quantified", with its cognate expression, means a written communication of the amount of duty payable under the indirect tax enactment;

Given this, for being eligible under this category the written communication of the duty payable before 30thJune, 2019 is must. The written communication in this regard includes letter intimating the demand or duty liability admitted by the taxpayer during enquiry, investigation or audit, copy of audit report supplied to the tax payer etc.

This aspect has been clarified by the CBI&C Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX. 8 dated 27.08.2019. The relavant extract of the circular dated 27.08.2019 is reproduced below:

(g) Cases under an enquiry, investigation or audit where the duty demand has been quantified on or before 30th day of June, 2019 are eligible under the scheme. Section 2(r) defines 'quantified' as a written communication of the amount of duty payable under the indirect tax enactment. It is clarified that such written communication will include a letter intimating duty demand. ;or duty liability admitted by any person during enquiry, Investigation or audit or audit report etc.



18

The above circular clarifies the fact that even written communication given by an Assessee during the investigation/audit/inquiry stating its liability shall suffice the purpose of falling under this category. Thus, as per authors view the scheme is available to the Assessee even in case where Assessee has communicated its liability with the Department.

3.1.5 Case means a voluntary disclosure:

Voluntary disclosure means self declaration/disclosure of its liability by the taxpayer on its own discretion i.e. the taxpayer comes to the department itself and inform the department about its tax liabilities. However, in case a person disclosed its liability due to enquiry or investigation or audit proceedings, the same shall not amount to voluntary disclosure. Further, where a person has reflected its liability in its returns and the same has not been paid in such case for the purpose of this scheme it is deemed that the taxpayer has already disclosed its liability before the scheme become operational and consequently, taxpayer shall not be covered under the category of voluntary disclosure. It may be noted the cases where the liability is declared by the tax payer in the statutory returns before 30th June, 2019, the taxpayer shall be covered under the category of amount of arrears under the LDR Scheme.

LDR Scheme further provides that in case of voluntary disclosure where any particular furnished in the declaration is subsequently found to be false, within a period of one year of issue of the discharge certificate, it shall be presumed as if the declaration was never made and proceedings under the applicable indirect tax enactment shall be instituted.

CBI&C vide Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX.8 dated

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



27.08.2019 has clarified thatin case of voluntarily disclosing of liability, there is no way to verify the correctness of declaration made. Therefore, a provision is made to reopen such declaration within one year of issue of discharge certificate, if subsequently any material particular is found to be false.

Therefore, applying for the scheme under this category is not free from the litigation. This category of the scheme is similar to the VCES scheme, 2013 and the history of the VCES scheme shows the person disclosing income under VECS were subjected to inquiry by the department and Show Cause Notices were issued to various persons. Thus opting for LDR Scheme under this category seems to be risky and could be litigious.

3.2 Ineligible categories of cases for making declaration under the LDR Scheme

The intention behind bringing the LDR Scheme is to make the trade and industry free from the legacy matters and clear the baggage of large pending litigation. Therefore, the LDR scheme has been given very wide coverage. However, Section 125 of the Finance Act provides certain circumstances and cases where a taxpayer is ineligible to make declaration under this scheme. The exceptions of the LDR Scheme as provided under Section 125 of the Finance Act are discussed as follows:

3.2.1 Appeal filed before the appellate forum has been finally heard on or before June 30, 2019 or Show Cause Notice issued in respect of which 'final hearing' has taken place on or before 30thJune, 2019:

Generally at adjudication or commissioner (Appeals) level after conclusion of personal hearing, Adjudicating Authority or Commissioner (Appeals) takes 20 days to



30 days for passing the order. Whereas in appeal pending before CESTAT or Hon'ble High Court or Hon'ble Supreme Court, the general tendency is to dictate the order in open court on the date of final arguments. However, in some cases the courts also reserve the order and pronounce the same later on. As per clause (a) and (c) of Section 125 of the Finance Act where appeal has been finally heard by the Appellate Authority or final hearing in respect of show cause notice has taken place on or before 30th June, 2019 and order has not been passed in the said cases till 30th June, 2019, the said case shall become ineligible for declaration under this scheme.

Now, question arises that when it will be considered that the final hearing is concluded. The Author based on his experience is of the view that at CESTAT or Hon'ble High Court or Hon'ble Supreme Court level when the matter has been argued finally and the order in the said has been reserved by the Court and only pronouncement of order is to be made later on, the same should fall under this category of ineligible cases. Whereas in case of appeal before commissioner (Appeals) or in case of adjudication of Show Cause Notice, the final hearing is construed to be completed when the taxpayer has signed the hearing memo and the Commissioner (Appeals) or the Adjudicating Authority has concluded the personal hearing and no further opportunity of hearing has been granted during the hearing in the said matter, the same could be considered to be covered under this category of ineligible cases.

However, there could be a situation where final hearing is concluded prior to the 30the June, 2019 but the orders could not be passed before 30th June, 2019 due to transfer of the authority or rescheduling of the bench. The CBI&C Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX.8 dated 27.08.2019



deals with this situation. The Circular clarifies that where hearing has been re-scheduled due to the change of bench or change in officer or any reason, then such case would get covered in the LDR Scheme. The said clarification has been given in respect of appeal matters. However, the ratio of said circular could also be applied on the cases at show Cause Notice stage.

3.2.2 Person convicted for any offence punishable under any provision of the indirect tax enactment for the matter for which he intends to file a declaration:

The CBI&C circular No. 201/11/2016-ST dated 30.09.2016 provides for arrest and prosecution of person in case of offences specified under clause (a) to (d) of Central Excise Act, where the evasion of Central Excise duty or misuse of CENVAT Credit is equal to or more then Rs. 2 crore. Similarly, in Service Tax where a personal commits any offence mentioned under sub-section (1) of section 89 of the Finance Act, 1994 and where due to such commission of offence, the evasion of Service tax is equal to or more than Rs. 2 crore then as per the circular said person can be arrested and prosecuted.

Where a taxpayer is held guilty for any offence resulting in tax evasion of more than Rs 2 cores and is convicted for such offence, then such person is ineligible to file declaration under the LDR scheme. However, the restriction is applicable only where the taxpayer is convicted in respect of the matter for which he intends to file declaration. In case such person files declaration under the scheme, the same will be rejected by the designated committee.

3.2.3 Show Cause notice issued in respect of erroneous refund:

This clause provides that a taxpayer shall be ineligible under the LDR Scheme where initially refund was granted



to a taxpayer but subsequently it comes to the knowledge of the department that the refund has wrongly/ erroneously been sanctioned to such taxpayer and consequently the department issued Show Cause Notice to such taxpayer for recovery of refund wrongly sanctioned. In other words, LDR Scheme shall not be available in respect of cases pertaining to recovery of erroneous refund.

3.2.4 Enquiry/Investigation/Audit, where quantification is not done on or before June 30, 2019

As per clause (e) of Section 125 of the Finance Act where a taxpayer is subjected to any enquiry, investigation or audit and the demand of duty/tax amount is not quantified on or before 30th June, 2019, such taxpayer shall be ineligible to file declaration under this scheme. The meaning and scope of the term 'quantified' has been discussed at para3.1.4 of this Chapter.

3.2.5 Person making voluntary disclosures after (i) audit, enquiry or investigation; (ii) indicating an amount as payable in return;

A taxpayer shall not be eligible for the LDR Scheme under voluntary disclosure category where the taxpayer discloses its liability after being subjected to audit, enquiry or investigation. The terms enquiry and investigation is defined under clause (m) of Section 121 of the Finance Act which reads as follows:

(m) "enquiry or investigation", under any of the indirect tax enactment, shall

include the following actions, namely:-

(i) search of premises;

- (ii) issuance of summons;
- 22 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



(iii)requiring the production of accounts, documents or other evidence;

(iv) recording of statements;

Further, the terms audit is define under clause (g) of Section 121 of the Finance Act which reads as follows:

(g) "audit" means any scrutiny, verification and checks carried out under the indirect tax enactment, other than an enquiry or investigation, and will commence when a written intimation from the central excise officer regarding conducting of audit is received;

On perusal of the definition of enquiry or investigation and Audit, it can be inferred that even if the taxpayer has received notice for audit or investigation or enquiry, the taxpayer is barred from applying for the LDR scheme under the category of voluntarily disclosure.

CBI&C vide Circular No. 1072/05/2019-CX. dated 25.09.2019 on this aspect has clarified that where the declaration is filed after receiving a letter for enquiry, the Designated Committee may decide on merits, whether such case is covered under Section 125(1) (f) or not.

Further, a tax payer who has shown the tax dues in the returns and the same has not been discharged, in such case the taxpayer shall be ineligible to file the declaration under this category. However such person should be eligible to make declaration under the LDR Scheme under the category of amount in Arrears for the amount which is reflected in the returns but is not paid.

3.2.6 Who have filed an application in the Settlement Commission for settlement of a case;

This exclusion suggests that the taxpayers who have filed

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 23



an application before the Settlement commission for the settlement of the case are ineligible to file declaration under the LDR Scheme.

Where the application filed before Settlement Commission for the settlement of the case is abated due to the reason such as rejection of application by the Settlement commission or due to order of the settlement commission not being passed in time etc., CBI&C vide Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX. dated 27.08.2019 has clarified that as all such cases are outside from the preview of Settlement Commission, they are covered under the LDR Scheme under relevant category of adjudication, appeals or arrears. The said circular further clarified that any appeal, reference or writ petition or an arrear emerging out of order of settlement commissioner is also covered under the scheme. The relevant extract of the said Circular is reproduced below:

"(f) Section 125(g) excludes the cases where an application has been filed before the Settlement Commission for settlement. However, in many such cases, proceedings before the Commission may abate due to reasons such as rejection of the application by the Commission or due to order of the Commission not being passed within the prescribed time etc. It is clarified that all such cases which are outside the preview of the Settlement Commission shall be covered under the Scheme under the relevant category of adjudication or appeal or arrears as the case may be provided the eligibility is otherwise established under this Scheme. Further, any pending appeals, reference or writ petition filed against or any arrears emerging out of the orders of Settlement Commission are also eligible under the Scheme."

However, the circular do not clarify that if any reference

24 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



or writ petition filed against the order of settlement commissioner, the same will fall under the litigation category or under arrears category. In Author's view in such case the application may be filed under the category of litigation as for the purpose 'appeal' it do not distinguish between writ/ appeal against settlement order and appeal against any other order.

3.2.7 Persons seeking to make declarations with respect to excisable goods set forth in the Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944.

The objective of the Government behind bringing LDR Scheme is to clear the pending disputes related to indirect tax statutes (govern and controlled by Central Government) which are now subsumed under Goods and Services Tax. Thus enactment or products which are not subsumed in GST has not been considered for the purpose of the scheme.

This aspect has also been clarified by CBI&C vide Circular No. 1072/05/2019-CX. dated 25.09.2019 that cases in respect of goods that are still subject to levy of Central Excise Duty such as specified petroleum products and tobacco products falling under Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944 are excluded from the applicability of LDR Scheme.

Thus, the duties levied under Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944 are excluded from the scope of this scheme and any person making declaration under the scheme in respect of goods specified in Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944 are not eligible for the scheme.




TAX DUES AND TAX RELIEF

4.1 Tax dues for the purpose of the Scheme:

Tax dues in common parlance means the total outstanding duty/ tax demand from the taxpayer. The tax dues in reference to each category of cases covered under the LDR Scheme is defined under Section 123 of the Finance Act.

4.1.1 Tax dues in case of Appeals:

Where the appeal has not been finally heard on or before the 30thJune, 2019, the Tax dues shall mean:

- a) the total amount of duty which is being disputed, in case single Appeal is filed against the order (irrespective whether the appeal is filed by Taxpayer or Department)
- b) Sum of the amount of duty which is being disputed in more than one appeal arising out of an order, where the Appeal has been filed by both the department and the Taxpayer against the same order

The term 'amount of duty' is defined under clause (d) of Section 121 of the Finance Act to mean the Excise duty, Service Tax or Cess payable under the indirect tax enactment. Thus, penalty and interest are not covered under the definition of Tax dues. For better appreciation and understanding of this clause certain illustrations are provided under finance Act. The same are reproduced below:



Illustration – 1 :

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and amount of penalty of Rs.100. The declarant files an appeal against this order. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs.1000 and hence the tax dues are Rs.1000.

Illustration -2:

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs.900 and penalty of Rs. 90. The declarant files an appeal against this order. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs. 900 and hence tax dues are Rs.900.

Illustration-3:

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs. 900 and penalty of Rs. 90. The declarant files an appeal against this order of determination. The departmental appeal is for an amount of duty of Rs. 100 and penalty of Rs. 10. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs. 900 plus Rs. 100 i.e Rs. 1000 and hence tax dues are Rs. 1000.

Illustration 4:

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs. 1000. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000. The declarant files an appeal against this order of determination. The first appellate authority reduced the amount of duty to Rs. 900. The declarant files a second appeal. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs. 900 and hence tax dues are Rs. 900.



4.1.2 Tax due in case of a show cause notice (SCN):

Where Show Cause Notice issued is received on or before the 30thJune, 2019 and the case has not been finally heard, the tax dues shall be:

- a) The amount of duty stated to be payable by the declarant in the said notice, where Show Cause issued to the declarant only
- b) Total Amount of duty payable jointly, where a Show Cause Notice has been issued to two or more persons making them jointly and severally liable for an amount of duty.

For better appreciation of this clause certain illustrations are provided below:

Illustration – 1:

The show cause notice issued to the taxpayer proposing demand of duty of Rs.1,00,000 and an amount of penalty of Rs. 10,000/-. In such case, the tax dues for the purpose of this clause shall be Rs. 1,00,000/-.

Illustration -2:

One show cause notice issued to two persons making both the persons liable to pay

duty of Rs. 1,00,000/- jointly and penalty of Rs. 1,00,000/-. Here, one of the person intend to file declaration under this scheme. In such case, the Tax dues for the purpose of this scheme shall be Rs. 1,00,000/-.

4.1.3 Tax dues in case of enquiry or investigation or audit

In case where an enquiry or investigation or audit is pending against the taxpayer, the amount of duty payable under any of the indirect tax enactment which has been





quantified on or before the 30th June, 2019 shall be considered as tax dues.

As already explained in the earlier paras, Section 121(r) defines term 'quantified' to mean a written communication of the amount of duty payable under the indirect tax enactment. Thus tax dues for the purpose of the this clause shall be:

- a) The amount of duty payable in terms of written communication issued to the taxpayer on or before 30th June, 2019 by the department stating the duty liability of the taxpayer, where an enquiry or investigation or audit is pending against the taxpayer; or
- b) The amounts of duty payable in terms of written communication given by the taxpayer to the department on or before 30th June, 2019, where an enquiry or investigation or audit is pending against the taxpayer.
- 4.1.4 Tax due in case of voluntary disclosure:

Where the amount has been voluntarily disclosed by the taxpayer, the total amount of duty stated in the declaration shall be considered as tax dues.

4.1.5 Tax dues in case of arrears :

The 'amount in Arrears' is defined in clause (c) of Section 121 of the Finance Act which means any amount recoverable as arrears of duty under the indirect tax enactment, on account of following reasons:

- a) No appeal filed by the declarant against an order or a order in appeal before expiry of the period of time for filing appeal; or
- 30 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



- b) An order in appeal relating to the declarant attaining finality; or
- c) The declarant filed a return under the indirect tax enactment on or before the 30.06.2019, wherein he has admitted a tax liability but not paid it.

Any amount payable as arrears in above mentioned situations shall be the tax dues for the purpose of this scheme.

- 4.2 Tax reliefs:
- 4.2.1 Tax relief available under LDR Scheme

The reliefs under the LDR Scheme are governed by the provisions of Section 124 of the Finance Act. Section 124 of the Finance Act while refers to the term 'relief' as percentage of tax dues and 'relief' from fine and penalty is referred only in clause (b) of the section 124 of the Finance Act. Thus, a doubt was raised by the Industry that relief from fine and penalty is available only when the Show Cause Notice has been issued for late fee or penalty only and amount of duty in the said notice has been paid or is nil. In this regard one need to refer to Section 129 of the Finance Act which deals with the issuance of discharge Certificate wherein it is stated that the taxpayer/declarant shall not be liable to pay any further duty interest, or penalty with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration.

Further, CBI&C vide Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX.8 dated 27.08.2019 has clarified that the provisions apply to any Show Cause Notice for penalty/late fee, irrespective of the fact that it is under adjudication or appeal. Thus, the waiver from penalty and late fee is available in all the ceases under the LDR Scheme irrespective of category of the case.



Given the above, the LDR Scheme provides a substantial relief on Tax dues which varies from 40% to 70% of the Tax dues depending on the category of cases and complete waiver from the interest and penalty. However, in the case of voluntary disclosure, only waiver from interest and penalty is available and the taxpayer has to pay entire amount of Tax dues declared.

The provisions of Section 124 read with Section 129 of the Finance Act and Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX.8 dated 27.08.2019 are summarized below:

Section	Category of	Relief a	vailable
124 of Finance Act	cases	In case Tax dues are equal to Rs. 50 lakhs or less	In case Tax dues are more than Rs. 50 Lakhs
(a)	Show cause notice or one or more ap- peals arising out of such notice which is pending as on 30.06.2019	70% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee	50% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee
(b)	Show cause notice for late fee or penalty only and amount of duty in the said notice has been paid or is nil	Waiver from Penalty and Late fee	Waiver from Penalty and Late fee

32 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



(c)	Amount in arrears	60% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee	40% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee
(c)(iii)	Amount of duty/tax in- dicated in the returns	60% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee	40% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee
(d)	Enquiry, investiga- tion or audit where amount quantified on or before 30.06.2019	70% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee	50% of tax dues and waiver from interest, penalty and late fee
(e)	Voluntary disclosure by the taxpayer	Waiver from interest, penalty and late fee	Waiver from interest, penalty and late fee

4.2.2 Conditions for availing the relief

The relief under this scheme is available on certain conditions/limitations.

(a) Amount paid as pre-deposit or amount paid during the investigation or audit shall be deducted while computing payable under the scheme:

As per Sub Section (2) of Section 124 of the Finance Act where a taxpayer has paid any amount as pre-deposit at



any stage of appellate proceedings under the indirect tax enactment or as deposit during enquiry, investigation or audit then such amount of pre-deposit or deposit shall be deducted when issuing the statement indicating the amount payable by the taxpayer/declarant.

Illustration: 1

Where a taxpayer has been issued a Show Cause Notice proposing the demand of duty of Rs. 1,00,000/- and penalty of Rs. 1,00,000/-. The taxpayer had already deposited Rs. 10,000/- during the investigation. The amount payable by said taxpayer under the LDR Scheme shall be Rs. 20,000/- [(1,00,000 - 70% * 100,000) - 10,000)].

Illustration: 2

Where a taxpayer has been issued a Show Cause Notice proposing the demand of duty of Rs. 1,00,000/- and penalty of Rs. 1,00,000/- and the Adjudicating Authority has confirmed the entire demand of Rs. 1,00,000/- and imposed penalty of Rs 1,00,000. The taxpayer preferred appeal against the said order of Adjudicating Authority after making mandatory pre-deposit equal to of 7.5% of duty demanded i.e. Rs. 7,500/-. The amount payable under this scheme in such case shall be Rs. 22,500/- [(1,00,000 – 70% * 100,000) – 7,500)].

(b) Pre-deposit or other deposit already paid in excess of amount payable under the scheme shall not be refunded:

As per Sub Section (2) of Section 124 where pre-deposit or deposit made by the taxpayer/ declarant exceeds the amount payable as indicated in the statement of the Designated Committee, the difference shall not be refunded to the taxpayer/ declarant.



Illustration:

Where a taxpayer has been issued a Show Cause Notice proposing the demand of duty of Rs. 1,00,000/- and penalty of Rs. 1,00,000/-. The taxpayer had already deposited Rs. 1,10,000/- during the investigation. The amount payable by said taxpayer under the LDR Scheme shall be Rs. 0/- [(1,00,000 - 70% * 100,000) - 1,10,000)]. No refund of excess deposited amount shall be granted.

(c) Amount payable under scheme shall not be paid through the input tax credit account:

The CBI&C issued Circular No. 42/16/2018-GST dated 13.04.2018 to clarify the procedure for recovery of arrears under existing law and clause 4.2 of the circular through utilization of electronic cash ledger or/and electronic credit ledger maintained under the GST law. The relevant portion of the circular is reproduced below for ready reference:

4.2 Recovery of interest, penalty and late fee payable: (a) The arrears of interest, penalty and late fee in relation to CENVAT credit wrongly carried forward, arising out of any of the situations discussed in para 3 above, shall be recovered as interest, penalty and late fee of central tax to be paid through the utilization of the amount available in electronic cash ledger of the registered person and the same shall be recorded in Part II of the Electronic Liability Register (FORM GST PMT-01).

(b) The arrears of interest, penalty and late fee in relation to arrears of central excise duty, service tax or wrongly availed CENVAT credit thereof under the existing law arising out of any of the situations discussed in para 3 above, shall, unless recovered under the existing law, be recovered as interest, penalty and late fee of central tax to be paid through the utilization of the amount available in



the electronic cash ledger of the registered person and the same shall be recorded in Part II of the Electronic Liability Register (FORM GST PMT-01).

On perusal of above it transpires that a person registered under GST could pay the arrears of central Excise through electronic credit ledger. However, clause (a) of Section 130 of Finance Act, debars the taxpayer/ declarant for the payment of amount payable under this scheme through the input tax credit account. As per this clause, the amount payable as determined by designated Authority under this scheme shall be paid through cash only.

However, such restriction is not applicable where the tax dues are already paid through utilization of Cenvat Credit prior to introduction of the LDR Scheme.

(d) Amount paid cannot be taken as input tax credit or entitle any person to take input tax credit as a recipient:

As per clause (c) of Section 130 of the Finance Act the amount paid under the schemes, shall not take the credit of such amount paid and nor the recipient of goods or Services, in respect of which declaration filed, shall be eligible to take the credit.



AMOUNT PAYABLE AND IMMUNITIES UNDER THE LDR SCHEME

5.1 Amount payable under the LDR Scheme:

As per clause (e) of Section 121 of the Finance Act the term "amount payable" means the final amount payable by the taxpayer/ declarant as determined by the Designated Committee and as indicated in the statement issued by it, in order to be eligible for the benefits under this Scheme and shall be calculated as the amount of tax dues less the tax relief.

Further, Sub Section 2 of the Section 124 of the Finance Act provides that any amount paid as pre-deposit at any stage of appellate proceedings under the indirect tax enactment or as deposit during enquiry, investigation or audit, shall be deducted when issuing the statement indicating the amount payable by the declarant. Accordingly, the amount payable under the LDR Scheme shall be equal to [(Tax dues – Tax relief (70% or 50% as the case may be)) – amount already paid].

However, the above formula shall not apply in case of Arrears. As per Clause (c) of Section 121 of the Finance Act, amount in arrears means the amount of arrears of duty. Further, Section 123 of the Finance Act defines the Tax dues as in respect of arrears as the amount payable which is due in arrears. In other words, the tax dues is the amount of duty outstanding against the declarant i.e. net amount after deducting the amount of dues already paid. Accordingly, the amount payable in case of `arrears' shall



be equal to [(Tax dues – Tax already paid) – Tax relief (60% or 40% of (Tax dues – Tax already paid)]

Further, CBI&C vide circular No. 1071/4/2019 – CX.8 dated 27.08.2019 has clarified that the amount already paid shall also includes the duty paid through Cenvat Credit and the Designated Committee at the time of determining the final amount shall adjust the amount paid trough Cenvat Credit also.

For better understanding of term 'amount payable', few illustrations are provided below:

Illustration 1:

Where a taxpayer has been issued a Show Cause Notice proposing the demand of duty of Rs. 1,00,000/- and penalty of Rs. 1,00,000/-. The taxpayer had already deposited Rs. 10,000/- during the investigation. The amount payable by said taxpayer under the scheme shall be Rs. 90,000/- [(1,00,000 – 70% * 100,000) – 10,000)].

Illustration 2 :

Whereas taxpayer was issued a show cause Notice proposing demand of duty of Rs. 1,00,000/- and the Adjudicating Authority has confirmed the said duty demand. The taxpayer did not filed any appeal against the said order. However, the taxpayer has already deposited Rs. 50,000/- in respect of said demand. As the taxpayer has not filed Appeal against the order, the demand of duty becomes amount in arrears. Now in such case the amount payable by said taxpayer under the LDR Scheme shall be Rs. 30,000/- [(1,00,000 – 50,000) – 60% * (1,00,000 – 50,000)].



Illustration 3:

Where a taxpayer has been issued a Show Cause Notice proposing the demand of duty of Rs. 1,00,000/- and penalty of Rs. 1,00,000/-. The taxpayer has already deposited Rs. 10,000/- through cash and Rs. 40,000/- through credit during the investigation. The amount payable by said taxpayer under the scheme shall be Rs. 0/-[(1,00,000 - 70% * 100,000) - 50,000)]

5.2 Immunities available to the taxpayer/declarant under the LDR Scheme

As per Sub-section (1) of Section 129 of the Finance Act, every discharge certificate issued under section 126 with respect to the amount payable under this Scheme shall be conclusive as to the matter. The person who applies for the scheme, after getting the discharged certificated shall have immunity from:

- a) payment of any further tax, duty, interest, or penalty with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration; and
- b) Immunity from the prosecution; and
- c) Immunity from re-opening of the case;
- 5.2.1 Immunity from payment of any further tax, duty, interest, or penalty with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration:

As per Section 129 of the Finance Act after issuance of discharge certificate under the scheme, the taxpayer shall have immunity from the payment of any further tax, duty, interest, or penalty with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration. The department cannot demand any amount in respect of such matter in future.



Similar immunity was also provided under earlier amnesty scheme i.e. Kar Vivad Samadhan Scheme, 1998. Therefore, the judicial pronouncement in respect of said clause of immunity merits considerations. In case of Prem Lamicoats (P.) Ltd. Vs. Commissioner of Central Excise, Chennai [2000 taxmann.com 125 (CEGAT- Chennai)] the Commissioner of Central Excise proceeded to adjudicate the show cause notice which was settled in Kar Vivad Samadhan Scheme and passed order for confiscation of goods and plant and machinery. The CEGAT has held that after show cause notice has been settled under KVSS, 1998, the Commissioner has no jurisdiction to proceed with the adjudication of the notice.

However, in case of voluntary disclosure of liability under the LDR Scheme as there is no way to verify the correctness therefore a specific provision is made to re-open such declaration within one year of issue of discharge certificate, if subsequently any material particulars declared is found to be false. Further, the filing of declaration in one case do not provide immunity from any liability proposed on the same issued for different period or in respect of different issue for the same period. The immunity is available only in respect of matter and time period for which declaration is filed.

5.2.2 Immunity from the prosecution:

The person who is applying for the matter shall not be liable to be prosecuted under the indirect tax enactment with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration. Further, the CBI&C vide Circular No. 1072/05/2019-CX dated 25th September, 2019 has clarified that where prosecution has already been launched, procedure laid down in Circular No. 1009/16/2015-Cx dated 23rd October, 2015 should be followed for withdrawal

40 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



of prosecution after issuance of the discharged certificate.

The availability of relief from prosecution after issuance of discharge certificate under earlier Kar Vivad Samadhan Scheme (amnesty scheme) was disputed by the department in case of Hira Lal Hari Lal Bhagwati Vs. CBI, New Delhi [2003 taxmann.com 1362 (SC)]. In the said case the taxpayer has filed declaration under Kar Samadhan Scheme and withdrawn the appeal filed in the said case in terms of the provisions of the Kar Samadhan Scheme. Thereafter, the taxpayer was issued discharged certificate under the said scheme. The department filed an FIR with CBI and initiated criminal proceedings under Section 12B and Section 420 of Indian Penal Code against the taxpayer. The Hon'ble Supreme Court has held that the matter settled under KVSS and in absence of mensrea, prosecution could not be launched even under IPC.

5.2.3 Immunity from re-opening of the case:

Section 129(1)(c) of the Finance Act provides that no case and time period in respect of which declaration is made under LDR scheme shall be reopened in any other proceeding under the indirect tax enactment.

However, as per Section 129(2)(b) the condition of 129(1) (c) shall not put any restriction on issuance of Show Cause Notice for the same issue for subsequent period or for a different matter for the same time period for which no declaration has been filed. The scheme provides immunity from re-opning of the matter only in respect of case for which declaration is filed. The CBI&C vide Circular No. 1071/4/2019-Cx.8 dated 27.08.2019 has clarified that issue of discharge certificate does not prevent issuance of show cause for subsequent period or different matter for the same period.



Further, Section 129(1)(c) shall not apply in case of voluntarily disclosure. Section 129(1)(c) provides that in case of voluntary disclosure where any material particular furnished in the declaration is subsequently found false, it shall be presumed that the declaration was never been made.



MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

6.1 Power to make Rules

Section 132 of the Finance Act provides the power to the government to make Rules for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of LDR Scheme, by issuing notification in the Official Gazette. Such rules may be notified by the government for all or any of the following matters:

- (a) the form in which a declaration may be made and the manner in which such declaration may be verified;
- (b) the manner of constitution of the designated committee and its rules of procedure and functioning;
- (c) the form and manner of estimation of amount payable by the declarant and the procedure relating thereto;
- (d) the form and manner of making the payment by the declarant and the intimation regarding the withdrawal of appeal;
- (e) the form and manner of the discharge certificate which may be granted to the declarant;
- (f) the manner in which the instructions may be issued and published;
- (g) any other matter which is to be, or may be, prescribed, or in respect of which provision is to be made, by rules



6.2 Power to Issue Instructions

Section 133 of the Finance Act provides power to CBI&C to issue such orders, instructions and directions to the authorities, as it may deem fit, for the proper administration of this Scheme. However, CBI&C is prohibited from issuing any directions so as to require any designated authority to dispose of a particular case in a particular manner. The Authorities and all other persons employed in the execution of this Scheme are required to observe and follow such orders, instructions and directions.

6.3 Removal of difficulties

Section 134 of the Finance Act provides that if any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of this Scheme, the Central Government may, by order, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Scheme, remove the difficulty. However, the Government cannot issue such order after the expiry of two years from the date on which the provisions of this Scheme come into force.

6.4 Constitution of Designated Committee

Section 126(2) of the Finance Act provides for formation or constitution of Designated Committee for the operation of LDR Scheme and Rule 3 of the LDR Rules governs the provisions of composition and functioning of the Designated Committee.

In each Commissionerate, two Designated Committee's shall be formed one for cases where the tax dues are more than rupees fifty lakh and another for the cases where the tax dues equal to or below fifty lakhs.

For the cases where the tax dues are more than rupees fifty lakhs, the Designated Committee shall be formed comprising the Principal Commissioner or Commissioner

44 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, and the Additional Commissioner or Joint Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax.

Whereas, for the cases involving tax dues equal to or below fifty lakhs, the Designated committee shall comprise of the Additional Commissioner or Joint Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, and the Deputy Commissioner or Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax.

The CBI&C vide Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX.8 dated 27th August, 2019 has clarified that the Designated Committees have been set up based on the amount of tax dues i.e. duty demand before applying the tax-relief. For example, if in a show cause notice the duty demanded is Rs. 60 lakhs, the same will fall under the purview of a Committee consisting of Principal Commissioner/Commissioner and Additional/Joint Commissioner even though the final duty payable after applying tax-relief will be less than Rs. 50 lakhs.

6.5 Rectification of Errors

The Designated Committee may modify its order only to correct an arithmetical error or clerical error, which is apparent on the face of record, on such error being pointed out by the Taxpayer or suomotu, by the Designated Committee. No error can be corrected by Designated Committee after thirty days from the date of issue of a statement indicating the amount payable by the Taxpayer.

6.6 Protection to the Officers

Section 135of the Finance Act provides following protection to the officers under the LDR Scheme :

(a) where anything which is done, or intended to be

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 45



done by the Central Government or any officer of the Central Government in good faith, in pursuance of this Scheme or any rule made there under in such case no suit, prosecution or other legal proceeding can be instituted against such officers.

- (b) Any proceeding, other than a suit shall be commenced against such officers only after giving a prior notice of not less than one month in writing of the intended proceeding to such officer.
- (c) No proceeding shall be commenced against any officer only on the ground of subsequent detection of an error in calculating the amount of duty payable by the declarant, unless there is evidence of misconduct.

CHAPTER 07

PROCEDURE FOR AVAILING THE SCHEME

7.1 Eligibility of the case under the LDR Scheme

Before applying under LDR Scheme, the taxpayer should carefully check the eligibly of the case under LDR Scheme and ensure that the case is related to the enactments covered by the Scheme and not debarred from applying for the LDR scheme in terms Section 125 (1) of the Finance Act.

7.2 Ascertaining Tax Due, Relief, tax paid and amount payable

Once the taxpayer ascertains that its case is covered under the LDR Scheme and the case do not falls under the exceptions provided Section 125 (1) of the Finance Act, the Second step is to analyze the category of case in terms of Explanation to Rule 3 of LDR Rules and determine the amount of tax dues as per Section 123 of the Finance Act. Thereafter, the next step is to determine the relief available and amount payable under the scheme.

7.3 Filing of Declaration

The declaration under the LDR Scheme is to be filed electronically in forms SVLDRS -1. For filing the declaration taxpayer has to login at the website https://www.cbic-gst. gov.in/cbec-portal-ui/?amnestyScheme. The Tax payer who was registered on ACES under Service Tax or under Central Excise can use their User ID and Password of ACES to login at LDR's website and if the taxpayer was not earlier



registered on ACES, he can register itself for LDR Scheme on the said website by filling the requisite credentials.

Once the taxpayer logged in into the website, he can file the declaration in form SVLDRS – 1 by filling the required details in the form. On opting for filing SVLDRS-1, a window will appear contacting the 10 questions on eligibility for the LDR Scheme and the taxpayer has to select 'yes' or 'no' in answer. If taxpayer is found eligible for the scheme, the system will allow proceeding further.

Thereafter, the taxpayer have to fill, information like Appeal No., Order No., amount of tax dues, amount of tax paid/pre-deposit made etc. and after that the system will automatically compute the amount payable. If tax payer does not agree with the amount payable, he can record the reasons for the same. The Online procedure for filling the declaration demonstrated with screen shots in subsequent Para 'Online procedure for filing declaration under LDR Scheme'.

7.4 Verification by the Designated Committee

Once the declaration is submitted by the taxpayer online, the same shall be verified by the Designated Committee on the basis of the information submitted by the taxpayer and records available with the department.

7.5 Estimation of Amount Payable

After verification of the declaration, the Designated Committee shall determine the amount payable and a statement will be issued to the taxpayer in form SVLDRS-3 stating the amount payable by the Taxpayer.

- 7.6 Opportunity of hearing
- 48 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



Where the amount estimated to be payable by the taxpayer exceeds the amount payable declared by the taxpayer, the Designated Committee shall issue a statement of amount payable in form SVLDRS -2 along with a notice of opportunity of personal hearing within 30days from the date of filing the declaration.

7.7 Payment of amount under LDR Scheme

The taxpayer after receiving the statement of amount payable from Designated Committee in from SVLDRS-3, shall pay the amount indicated in the statement within 30 days from the date of its issue.

7.8 Withdrawal of Appeal

The taxpayer after making payment is required to withdraw the appeal filed in respect of case for which declaration is filed, which is pending before the Hon'ble High Court and Supreme Court. As regard to appeals before Commissioner (Appeals) and CESTAT, the same shall be deemed to be withdrawn.

7.9 Issue of Discharge Certificate

The Designated Committee on being satisfied that the taxpayer has paid full amount as determined under form SVLDRS-3 and submitted the proof of withdrawal of appeal or writ petition in respect of said case, the DC shall issue the discharge certificate electronically in form SVLDRS-4, within 30 day of payment or submission of proof whichever is later.

- 7.10 Online procedure for filing declaration under LDR Scheme
 - The taxpayer can apply for this scheme from https:// cbic-gst.gov.in

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 49



- The taxpayer already registered under CE / ST can login and fill Part-B of SVLDRS Form-1.
- The unregistered taxpayer can register himself by filling Part-A of SVLDRS Form -1.

If the taxpayer selects the jurisdiction from know your jurisdiction then value of the fields i.e. State/ Zone/ Commissionerate/ Division/ Range will auto populated.

Fite are a Registered Une	EGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTIONS SCHEME, 2019 Pear disk on Noulan Jupy Voll Scheme and M the following details to register (All fields are Mendatory) : Pears and	
	Addated in the second s	
ana		
micular'		
Ind (Investment '	here the second se	
ant, data /	(and a second s	
hidubear' -	and a second sec	
Where your Articleton	AyaJB	

fig 7.1

Once the taxpayer log in by using the user ID and password, the dashboard of the registered taxpayer would be available. The snapshot of the same is shown below as fig. 7.2





fig 7.2

The taxpayer can select the LDR scheme from the menu option on the dashboard. The snapshot of the same is shown below as fig 7.3





On selecting the Scheme, the following questionnaire would come on the screen. In order to apply for the Scheme, the answer to first four questions must be 'No'. The snap shot of the window/ screen of questionnaire is shown below as fig 7.4.



fig 7.4

After replying to the questionnaire, the tax payer needs to select the category, sub-category and duty type under the LDR Scheme. The snap shot of the screens appearing for the said purpose is shown at fig 7.5, fig 7.6, fig 7.7 and fig 7.8.



	Artificition CARIMEDIATACI NORTH > D-D	VISION I - IMPICIA + R BANGE I				Last Ligged In: Aug 24, 2019, 3142:54.79
Bathheard						
			FORM SVLDRS 1			
	Name of the Declarant	Address of the Declarant	PMI .	Email ID	Makile No.	
	ылан	North Black, Ahmedalad 3705 Arc.	MPO973R	nhohdatiyabi Hogymakisen	9467284008	
	Aurisd's Bon					
	CANANEDAMAD HORTH + D. ONTHIO					
alegory		Sub Category		Duty Type		
1			9			
Voluntary Disc						

fig 7.5

	Artidiction : CARMEDIAEAD-NORTH + D.1	DIVISION 1 - NAROCIA = R. KANGE I				Last Logged In: Aug 27, 2019, 32:50:09
Bathboard.	8		FORM SVLDRS 1			
	Name of the Declacant	Address of the Declarant	INN	EmailID	Mublis No	
	NITESH	North Block, Altrinedabad 3705 Ars	BAIPD972H	nteshdakiyafi190@gmail.com	9467256008	
	Aufediction					
	CAMMEDABAD-NORTH - DIDWISIO					
ategory		Sub Category		Duty Type		
litigation		Select Callet			:	
		SCN Involving Duty Pending				
		SCN molving Penalty Pending				
		Appeal Pending				
			(Cample Menuter 201			

fig 7.6



Central Board of Masistry of Timare	of Indirect Taxes and Contoms or - Department of Revenue				+ 1-
-	Artidiction: CARIMEDIABAD NORTH + D.O	INTEGN (- NARODA + R.KANGE)			Last Logged In: Aug 27, 2018, 12:300
	8		FORM SVLDRS 1		
	Name of the Declarant	Address of the Declarant	PIN	Email ID	Mublie Ne
	NTEIN	North Bicch, Ahmediahad \$705 Am.	BAJPOR73%	niteshdabiyalili Ko@gmail.com	946.7286008
	Articletion				
	CAHMEDABAD HORTH + DIDIVISIO				
Calegory		Sub Californy		Duty Type	
Amers		(felez) Select		Central Excise	1
		Appeal not filed or appeal having at Declared in Return but not paid			
			E Carryly Information (20)		∧ 0, <mark>03</mark> 28.30

fig 7.7



fig 7.8

54

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



On filling the requisite information, the system will compute the amount payable. In case the declarant/ taxpayer does not agree with the amount payable computed by the system, the taxpayer can enter the amount payable as per his calculation. Thereafter, the tax payer could submit the declaration by clicking on the submit button. On submitting the application, ARN will be generated and the taxpayer will be informed via email and sms.

The Tax officer on submission of the declaration in form SVLDRS 1, will be shown following two options:

Option 1 : SVLDRS 3

Where the amount payable as estimated and declared by the taxpayer is equal to the amount payable estimated to be payable, the DC shall issue a statement in form SVLDRS-3 indicating the amount payable by the taxpayer. The said form should be issued by the DC within 60 days from the date of receipt of declaration.

Option 2 : SVLDRS 2

Where the amount payable as estimated and declared by the taxpayer is less than the amount payable estimated to be payable by DC, the DC shall issue a statement in form SVLDRS-2 within 30 days of date of receipt of declaration stating the estimate of the amount payable by the taxpayer along with notice of opportunity for personal hearing. In such case the tax payer is required to file reply in form SVLDRS-2A stating agreement or disagreement with the estimate of the amount payable as computed/ determined by DC.

Once the amount payable is agreed or accepted by the DC, the taxpayer shall pay the said amount electronically within a period of thirty days from the issue of the statement. The challan for payment is to be generated on the portal itself and on generation of the challan, the portal will direct the tax payer to the payment gateway.



In case the LDR Scheme is opted in respect of any appeal or reference or writ petition filed before the High Court or Supreme Court, the taxpayer is required to withdraw such appeal or writ petition with the leave of the Court.

Once the payment of the amount payable as indicated in Form SVLDR-3 is made and DC is satisfied of the payment so made and submission of the proof of withdrawal of appeal or reference or writ petition filed before the High Court or Supreme Court, if any, the DC shall issue electronically in Form SVLDRS-4 a discharge certificate within thirty days of the said payment and submission of proof of withdrawal (where applicable), whichever is later.

In case wherein the amount payable is NIL and accordingly, statement in Form SVLDR-3 was not issued and no appeal before the High Court or Supreme Court is pending, the discharge certificate shall be issued within 30 days of receipt of declaration. Snapshot of the discharge certificate in Form SVLDR-4 is shown at fig. 7.9

	Details TVD	DREZ SIADRE-JA	TVLDRL28	INDRU	atoma Application	History						
						Form	No. SVLDRS-4	ier rule (1)				
	(Disc	harga Cartificata I	e ful a	d Final Settle			ha Finansa (No. 2) Act, Y DISPUTE RESOLUTI			uuan (Lagary Disputa I	lesslutten) Schem	a, 2029]
Declaret	then No :		SVLD.	(54 Nr -		Commissionerate/1	DQGI, Delhi	2ar	e/DGB, Deihi :			
		Diama and address of t					had made a declaration under Section 123 of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2018;					
	Whereas			Name and a	ddress of the destar	rant) having registrati	lon number			Contract Designed and the	and a second free.	et wer, zoer,
Ar		he designated ser		y losse of a cl	atoment dated			The Finance (No.	2) Act, 2019 determin	red the emount of Ro.		(Rupees
			wittee b	y losses of a st) payah	atoment dated	in accordance with th	under Section 127 e	f the Finance (No. eme towards full :	2) Ast, 2018 determin and Real settlement o	ned the amount of Ro. If tax dues as per data	ik given below:	(Repres
		he designated can be exclusive of Group from a		y losse of a cl	atoment dated		lunder Section 127 of he provisions of the Sch	f the Finance (No. eme towards full :	2) Act, 2019 determin	red the emount of Ro.	ik given below:	(Rupees
	ud urbarean U	investigation of	 	y losses of a st) payols	atement deteil is by the declarant Providence	in accordance with th	Londer Section 127 of he provisions of the Sch	f the Finance (file. eme towards full :	2) Ast, 2018 determin and Real settlement o	ned the amount of Ro. If tax dues as per data	ils given below: (climated	(Repres Amount in Figures (*) Amount Frights
. An 1	nd inherene t Calegory Wiletary	Develation of Mereka	 	y income self as et) propuls (income income series	atement deteil is by the declarant Providence	in asserdance with the repeated To Passing	under Section 127 o he provisions of the Sch ter i Norm	f the Finance (file. eme towards full :	2) Ast, 2018 determin and Real settlement o	ned the amount of Ro. If tax dues as per data	la port below I diseoted Name	(Repres Amount in Figures (*) Amount Frights

fig7.9

56 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



ISSUES / GREY AREAS

Certain grey areas or issues which may crop up while filing the declaration under the LDR scheme are tabulated below:

Sr No	Issue	Comments
1.	Single appeal filed against a common order in respect of multiple Show Cause Notices, whether single declaration to be filed or separate declaration in respect of each Show Cause Notice is to be filed?	Explanation to Rule 3(2)(a) of the LDR Rules defines a "case" to mean a Show Cause Notice or one or more appeal arising out of such Show Cause Notice. In other words said Rule treats each show cause notice as a separate case. Given this, separate declaration should be filed for each show cause notice even though single appeal is pending with the Appellate Authority/ Court.
2.	Where the department and Taxpayer both are in Appeal against a common order, the taxpayer filed appeal before 30thJune, 2019 and the same is pending as on 30th June, 2019. Whereas, the department filed appeal against the same order after 30thJune, 2019. Whether tax payer shall be eligible for the scheme? If yes, what will be the tax dues for the purposes of the scheme?	It appears that the Scheme might not be available to the taxpayer as one of the appeals arising out of the same order in respect of a Show Cause Notice was not pending on 30th June, 2019. This issue needs to be addressed by the CBI&C to extend the benefit of LDR Scheme in such cases.



3.	Where Show Cause Notice is issued to Co-Noticee along with main Noticee, whether separate declaration by main Noticee and Co-Noticee to be filed? If main Noticee does not file declaration, whether co- Noticee can file the declaration or vice versa?	In Author's view separate declaration is to be filed by the main noticee and the co-noticee. In case the main noticee does not file the declaration under LDR Scheme, the co-noticees shall not be entitled to the benefit of the LDR Scheme. This aspect has been clarified by the CBI&C dated 27.08.2019 should be filed
4.	Liability under Reverse Charge Mechanism(RCM) deposited after issuance of Show Cause Notice and availed Cenvat Credit. SCN issued for tax, interest and penalty. Whether the benefit under LDR Scheme shall be available as the tax payer has already availed Cenvat Credit while LDR Scheme states that any amount paid under the scheme shall not be taken as input tax credit?	Section 130(1)(c) of the Finance Act provides restriction on admissibility of input tax credit in respect of any amount paid under the scheme. The 'amount payable' under the scheme is defined to mean the final amount payable by the declarant as determined by the designated committee and as indicated in the statement issued by it, in order to be eligible for the benefits under this scheme and shall be calculated as the amount of tax dues less tax relief. Further, Section 124(2) provides that any amount paid as pre- deposit at any stage of appellate proceedings or as deposit during enquiry, investigation or audit shall be deducted when issuing the statement indicating the amount payable by the declarant. Given this, the amount payable as per the statement under the scheme shall come to be NIL and therefore, the author is of the view that the restriction provided on availability of input tax credit under Section 130 should not be applicable to the present case.



5.	In case of a Show Cause Notice since the amount in respect of penalty is not finally quantified, what amount is to be shown with regard to penalty in Form SVLDRS-1?	In author's view the maximum penalty leviable under the Section under which penalty is proposed to be imposed under the Show Cause Notice could be shown as penalty in Form SVLDRS-1.
6.	Investigation or audit completed and duty amount quantified before 30.06.2019 but Show Cause Notice issued after 30.06.2019. Whether the benefit of the LDR Scheme shall be available to the taxpayer in such case?	In this case once the Show Cause Notice is issued the case ceases to fall under the category of Enquiry, investigation or audit for the purpose of LDR Scheme. Further, since the show cause notice is issued after 30.06.2019 and is pending adjudication, the benefit of the LDR Scheme should not be available to the taxpayer.
7.	Whether LDR Scheme should be available in respect of cases where application for revision under Section 35EE of the Central Excise Act, 1944 is pending before the revisionary authority?	Though the intent of the LDR Scheme is to allow the benefit to all the matters in relation to enactments contained in Section 122, except those cases which are excluded by Section 125. However, the said cases typically are not covered under the definition of tax dues as defined under Section 123. Further, the term appellate forum is defined under the Finance Act in a manner that it does not cover within its ambit the Revisionary Authority. Given this, the benefit of the LDR Scheme may not be available to cases/ applications pending with revisionary authority.



8.	Whether LDR Scheme should be applicable in cases involving Seizure of goods?	The tax relief under the LDR Scheme does not cover the redemption fine. Given this, it appears that the benefit may not be available qua the seizure of the goods. However, Hon'ble Tribunal in the case of Prem Lamicoats Pvt Ltd while dealing with similar situation under Kar Vivad Samadhan Scheme has held that once the duty has been settled under the Scheme, the Commissioner does not have power to adjudicate the show cause notice. (refer para 5.2.1 in this regard)
9.	The department issued multiple Show Cause Notices to a tax payer and the taxpayer deposited lumpsum tax of say 50 percent of the total duty demand in all the Show Cause Notices, whether the payment so made could be adjusted under the Scheme on pro-rata basis against various cases or it shall be set-off fully against one case?	In author's view that the duty deposited against the single challan is not appropriated by the tax payer against any single show cause notice and also the duty so paid is still under protest till the matter attains finality. Given this, the tax payer should be allowed to utilize the duty paid through a single challan in the manner the taxpayer intends to utilize.



10.	In space wherein	Contian 127(6) of the Finance
10.	In cases wherein	Section 127(6) of the Finance
	the declaration filed	Act provides that once the
	by the taxpayer and	statement is issued by the
	subsequently a statement	Designated Committee,
	of amount payable is	the appeal filed before the
	issued by the Designated	appellate forum other than
	Committee in respect of	Supreme Court and High
	matters pending before	Court shall be deemed
	the appellate authority	to have been withdrawn.
	other than High Court and	Further, there is no provision
	Supreme Court, whether	for reinstatement of such
	the taxpayer can opt not	appeal under the LDR
	to deposit the amount	Scheme. Given this once
	payable or fails to deposit	the stamen is issued by the
	the amount payable	Designated Committee, the
	within prescribed time	taxpayer cannot persue the
	and persue the appeal?	appeal as the appeal stands
		deemed withdrawn once
		the statement of amount
		payable is issued by the
		Designated Committee.




FINANCE ACT, 2019

SABKA VISHWAS (LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION) SCHEME, 2019 Finance (no. 2) Act, 2019

- 120. Short title and commencement -
 - (1) This Scheme shall be called the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019 (hereafter in this Chapter referred to as the "Scheme").
 - (2) It shall come into force on such date as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, appoint.

121. Definitions -

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires,—

- (a) "amount declared" means the amount declared by the declarant under section 125;
- (b) "amount estimated" means the amount estimated by the designated committee under section 127;
- (c) "amount in arrears" means the amount of duty which is recoverable as arrears of duty under the indirect tax enactment, on account of—
 - (i) no appeal having been filed by the declarant against an order or an order in appeal before expiry of the period of time for filing appeal; or



- (ii) an order in appeal relating to the declarant attaining finality; or
- (iii) the declarant having filed a return under the indirect tax enactment on or before the 30th day of June, 2019, wherein he has admitted a tax liability but not paid it;
- (d) "amount of duty" means the amount of central excise duty, the service tax and the cess payable under the indirect tax enactment;
- (e) "amount payable" means the final amount payable by the declarant as determined by the designated committee and as indicated in the statement issued by it, in order to be eligible for the benefits under this Scheme and shall be calculated as the amount of tax dues less the tax relief;
- (f) "appellate forum" means the Supreme Court or the High Court or the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal or the Commissioner (Appeals);
- (g) "audit" means any scrutiny, verification and checks carried out under the indirect tax enactment, other than an enquiry or investigation, and will commence when a written intimation from the central excise officer regarding conducting of audit is received;
- (h) "declarant" means a person who is eligible to make a declaration and files such declaration under section 125;
- (i) "declaration" means the declaration filed under section 125;
- (j) "departmental appeal" means the appeal filed by a central excise officer authorised to do so under the indirect tax enactment, before the appellate forum;
- 64 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



- (k) "designated committee" means the committee referred to in section 126;
- (I) "discharge certificate" means the certificate issued by the designated committee under section 127;
- (m)"enquiry or investigation", under any of the indirect tax enactment, shall include the following actions, namely:—
 - (i) search of premises;
 - (ii) issuance of summons;
 - (iii) requiring the production of accounts, documents or other evidence;
 - (iv) recording of statements;
- (n) "indirect tax enactment" means the enactments specified in section 122;
- (o) "order" means an order of determination under any of the indirect tax enactment, passed in relation to a show cause notice issued under such indirect tax enactment;
- (p) "order in appeal" means an order passed by an appellate forum with respect to an appeal filed before it;
- (q) "person" includes-
 - (i) an individual;
 - (ii) a Hindu undivided family;
 - (iii) a company;
 - (iv) a society;
 - (v) a limited liability partnership;
 - (vi)a firm;





- (vii) an association of persons or body of individuals, whether incorporated or not;
- (viii)the Government;
- (ix) a local authority;
- (x) an assessee as defined in rule 2 of the Central Excise Rules, 2002;
- (xi) every artificial juridical person, not falling within any of the preceding clauses;
- (r) "quantified", with its cognate expression, means a written communication of the amount of duty payable under the indirect tax enactment;
- (s) "statement" means the statement issued by the designated committee under section 127;
- (t) "tax relief" means the amount of relief granted under section 124;
- (u) all other words and expressions used in this Scheme, but not defined, shall have the same meaning as assigned to them in the indirect tax enactment and in case of any conflict between two or more such meanings in any indirect tax enactment, the meaning which is more congruent with the provisions of this Scheme shall be adopted.
- 122. Application of Scheme to indirect tax enactments -

This Scheme shall be applicable to the following enactments, namely:—

- (a) the Central Excise Act, 1944 or the Central Excise Tariff Act, 1985 or Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 and the rules made thereunder;
- 66 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



- (b) the following Acts, namely:-
 - (i) the Agricultural Produce Cess Act, 1940;
 - (ii) the Coffee Act, 1942;
 - (iii) the Mica Mines Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1946;
 - (iv) the Rubber Act, 1947;
 - (v) the Salt Cess Act, 1953;
 - (vi) the Medicinal and Toilet Preparations (Excise Duties) Act, 1955;
 - (vii) the Additional Duties of Excise (Goods of Special Importance) Act, 1957
 - (viii) the Mineral Products (Additional Duties of Excise and Customs)
 - (ix) The Sugar (Special Excise Duty) Act, 1959
 - (x) the Textiles Committee Act, 1963;
 - (xi) the Produce Cess Act, 1966;
 - (xii) the Limestone and Dolomite Mines Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1972;
 - (xiii) the Coal Mines (Conservation and Development) Act, 1974;
 - (xiv) the Oil Industry (Development) Act, 1974;
 - (xv) the Tobacco Cess Act, 1975;
 - (xvi) the Iron Ore Mines, Manganese Ore Mines and Chrome Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Act, 1976;
 - (xvii) the Bidi Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1976;
 - (xviii) the Additional Duties of Excise (Textiles and Textile Articles) Act, 1978
 - (xix) the Sugar Cess Act, 1982;

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 67



- (xx) the Jute Manufacturers Cess Act, 1983;
- (xxi) the Agricultural and Processed Food Products Export Cess Act, 1985;
- (xxii) the Spices Cess Act, 1986;
- (xxiii) the Finance Act, 2004;
- (xxiv) the Finance Act, 2007;
- (xxv) the Finance Act, 2015;
- (xxvi) the Finance Act, 2016;
- (c) any other Act, as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify.
- 123. Tax Dues -

For the purposes of the Scheme, "tax dues" means-

- (a) where-
 - a single appeal arising out of an order is pending as on the 30th day of June, 2019 before the appellate forum, the total amount of duty which is being disputed in the said appeal;
 - (ii) more than one appeal arising out of an order, one by the declarant and the other being a departmental appeal, which are pending as on the 30th day of June, 2019 before the appellate forum, the sum of the amount of duty which is being disputed by the declarant in his appeal and the amount of duty being disputed in the departmental appeal:

Provided that nothing contained in the above clauses shall be applicable where such an appeal has been heard finally on or before the 30th day of June, 2019.



Illustration 1:

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and amount of penalty of Rs.100. The declarant files an appeal against this order. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs.1000 and hence the tax dues are Rs.1000.

Illustration 2:

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs.900 and penalty of Rs. 90. The declarant files an appeal against this order. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs. 900 and hence tax dues are Rs.900.

Illustration 3:

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs. 900 and penalty of Rs. 90. The declarant files an appeal against this order of determination. The departmental appeal is for an amount of duty of Rs. 100 and penalty of Rs. 10. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs. 900 plus Rs. 100 i.eRs. 1000 and hence tax dues are Rs. 1000.



Illustration 4:

The show cause notice to a declarant was for an amount of duty of Rs. 1000. The order was for an amount of duty of Rs.1000. The declarant files an appeal against this order of determination. The first appellate authority reduced the amount of duty to Rs. 900. The declarant files a second appeal. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs. 900 and hence tax dues are Rs. 900;

(b) where a show cause notice under any of the indirect tax enactment has been received by the declarant on or before the 30th day of June, 2019, then, the amount of duty stated to be payable by the declarant in the said notice:

Provided that if the said notice has been issued to the declarant and other persons making them jointly and severally liable for an amount, then, the amount indicated in the said notice as jointly and severally payable shall be taken to be the amount of duty payable by the declarant;

- (c) where an enquiry or investigation or audit is pending against the declarant, the amount of duty payable under any of the indirect tax enactment which has been quantified on or before the 30th day of June, 2019;
- (d) where the amount has been voluntarily disclosed by the declarant, then, the total amount of duty stated in the declaration;
- (e) where an amount in arrears relating to the declarant is due, the amount in arrears.



124. Relief available under the scheme -

- Subject to the conditions specified in sub-section (2), the relief available to a declarant under this Scheme shall be calculated as follows:—
 - (a) where the tax dues are relatable to a show cause notice or one or more appeals arising out of such notice which is pending as on the 30th day of June, 2019, and if the amount of duty is,—
 - (i) rupees fifty lakhs or less, then, seventy per cent. of the tax dues;
 - (ii) more than rupees fifty lakhs, then, fifty per cent. of the tax dues;
 - (b) where the tax dues are relatable to a show cause notice for late fee or penalty only, and the amount of duty in the said notice has been paid or is nil, then, the entire amount of late fee or penalty;
 - (c) where the tax dues are relatable to an amount in arrears and,—
 - (i) the amount of duty is, rupees fifty lakhs or less, then, sixty per cent. of the tax dues;
 - (ii) the amount of duty is more than rupees fifty lakhs, then, forty per cent. of the tax dues;
 - (iii) in a return under the indirect tax enactment, wherein the declarant has indicated an amount of duty as payable but not paid it and the duty amount indicated is,—
 - (A) rupees fifty lakhs or less, then, sixty per cent. of the tax dues;
 - (B) amount indicated is more than rupees fifty



lakhs, then, forty per cent. of the tax dues;

- (d) where the tax dues are linked to an enquiry, investigation or audit against the declarant and the amount quantified on or before the 30th day of June, 2019 is—
 - (i) rupees fifty lakhs or less, then, seventy per cent. of the tax dues;
 - (ii) more than rupees fifty lakhs, then, fifty per cent. of the tax dues;
- (e) where the tax dues are payable on account of a voluntary disclosure by the declarant, then, no relief shall be available with respect to tax dues.
- (2) The relief calculated under sub-section (1) shall be subject to the condition that any amount paid as pre deposit at any stage of appellate proceedings under the indirect tax enactment or as deposit during enquiry, investigation or audit, shall be deducted when issuing the statement indicating the amount payable by the declarant:

Provided that if the amount of pre deposit or deposit already paid by the declarant exceeds the amount payable by the declarant, as indicated in the statement issued by the designated committee, the declarant shall not be entitled to any refund.

- 125. Declaration under the scheme -
 - (1) All persons shall be eligible to make a declaration under this Scheme except the following, namely:—
 - (a) who have filed an appeal before the appellate
- 72 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



forum and such appeal has been heard finally on or before the 30th day of June, 2019;

- (b) who have been convicted for any offence punishable under any provision of the indirect tax enactment for the matter for which he intends to file a declaration;
- (c) who have been issued a show cause notice, under indirect tax enactment and the final hearing has taken place on or before the 30th day of June, 2019;
- (d) who have been issued a show cause notice under indirect tax enactment for an erroneous refund or refund;
- (e) who have been subjected to an enquiry or investigation or audit and the amount of duty involved in the said enquiry or investigation or audit has not been quantified on or before the 30th day of June, 2019;
- (f) a person making a voluntary disclosure,-
 - (i) after being subjected to any enquiry or investigation or audit; or
 - (ii) having filed a return under the indirect tax enactment, wherein he has indicated an amount of duty as payable, but has not paid it;
- (g) who have filed an application in the Settlement Commission for settlement of a case;
- (h) persons seeking to make declarations with respect to excisable goods set forth in the Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944.



- (2) A declaration under sub-section (1) shall be made in such electronic form as may be prescribed.
- 126. Verification of declaration by designated committee -
 - The designated committee shall verify the correctness of the declaration made by the declarant under section 125 in such manner as may be prescribed:

Provided that no such verification shall be made in case where a voluntary disclosure of an amount of duty has been made by the declarant.

- (2) The composition and functioning of the designated committee shall be such as may be prescribed.
- 127. Issue of statement by designated committee -
 - (1) Where the amount estimated to be payable by the declarant, as estimated by the designated committee, equals the amount declared by the declarant, then, the designated committee shall issue in electronic form, a statement, indicating the amount payable by the declarant, within a period of sixty days from the date of receipt of the said declaration.
 - (2) Where the amount estimated to be payable by the declarant, as estimated by the designated committee, exceeds the amount declared by the declarant, then, the designated committee shall issue in electronic form, an estimate of the amount payable by the declarant within thirty days of the date of receipt of the declaration.
 - (3) After the issue of the estimate under sub-section (2),
- 74 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



the designated committee shall give an opportunity of being heard to the declarant, if he so desires, before issuing the statement indicating the amount payable by the declarant:

Provided that on sufficient cause being shown by the declarant, only one adjournment may be granted by the designated committee.

- (4) After hearing the declarant, a statement in electronic form indicating the amount payable by the declarant, shall be issued within a period of sixty days from the date of receipt of the declaration.
- (5) The declarant shall pay electronically through internet banking, the amount payable as indicated in the statement issued by the designated committee, within a period of thirty days from the date of issue of such statement.
- (6) Where the declarant has filed an appeal or reference or a reply to the show cause notice against any order or notice giving rise to the tax dues, before the appellate forum, other than the Supreme Court or the High Court, then, notwithstanding anything contained in any other provisions of any law for the time being in force, such appeal or reference or reply shall be deemed to have been withdrawn.
- (7) Where the declarant has filed a writ petition or appeal or reference before any High Court or the Supreme Court against any order in respect of the tax dues, the declarant shall file an application before such High Court or the Supreme Court for withdrawing such writ petition, appeal or reference and after withdrawal of such writ petition, appeal or reference with the leave of the Court, he shall furnish proof of such withdrawal to



the designated committee, in such manner as may be prescribed, along with the proof of payment referred to in sub-section (5).

- (8) On payment of the amount indicated in the statement of the designated committee and production of proof of withdrawal of appeal, wherever applicable, the designated committee shall issue a discharge certificate in electronic form, within thirty days of the said payment and production of proof.
- 128. Rectification of errors -

Within thirty days of the date of issue of a statement indicating the amount payable by the declarant, the designated committee may modify its order only to correct an arithmetical error or clerical error, which is apparent on the face of record, on such error being pointed out by the declarant or suomotu, by the designated committee.

- 129. Issue of discharge certificate to be conclusive of matter and time period $% \left({{\left[{{{\rm{T}}_{\rm{T}}} \right]}_{\rm{T}}}} \right)$
 - (1) Every discharge certificate issued under section 126 with respect to the amount payable under this Scheme shall be conclusive as to the matter and time period stated therein, and—
 - (a) the declarant shall not be liable to pay any further duty, interest, or penalty with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration;
 - (b) the declarant shall not be liable to be prosecuted under the indirect tax enactment with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration;
- 76 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



- (c) no matter and time period covered by such declaration shall be reopened in any other proceeding under the indirect tax enactment.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1),-
 - (a) no person being a party in appeal, application, revision or reference shall contend that the central excise officer has acquiesced in the decision on the disputed issue by issuing the discharge certificate under this scheme;
 - (b) the issue of the discharge certificate with respect to a matter for a time period shall not preclude the issue of a show cause notice,—
 - (i) for the same matter for a subsequent time period; or
 - (ii) for a different matter for the same time period;
 - (c) in a case of voluntary disclosure where any material particular furnished in the declaration is subsequently found to be false, within a period of one year of issue of the discharge certificate, it shall be presumed as if the declaration was never made and proceedings under the applicable indirect tax enactment shall be instituted.
- 130. Restriction of Scheme -
 - (1) Any amount paid under this Scheme,—
 - (a) shall not be paid through the input tax credit account under the indirect tax enactment or any other Act;
 - (b) shall not be refundable under any circumstances;

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 77



- (c) shall not, under the indirect tax enactment or under any other ${\rm Act},-$
 - (i) be taken as input tax credit; or
 - (ii) entitle any person to take input tax credit, as a recipient, of the excisable goods or taxable services, with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration.
- (2) In case any pre deposit or other deposit already paid exceeds the amount payable as indicated in the statement of the designated committee, the difference shall not be refunded.
- 131. Removal of doubts -

For the removal of doubts, it is hereby declared that, save as otherwise expressly provided in sub-section (1) of section 124, nothing contained in this Scheme shall be construed as conferring any benefit, concession or immunity on the declarant in any proceedings other than those in relation to the matter and time period to which the declaration has been made.

- 132. Power to make rules -
 - (1) The Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, make rules for carrying out the provisions of this Scheme.
 - (2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, such rules may provide for all or any of the following matters, namely:—
 - (a) the form in which a declaration may be made and the manner in which such declaration may be verified;
- 78 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



- (b) the manner of constitution of the designated committee and its rules of procedure and functioning;
- (c) the form and manner of estimation of amount payable by the declarant and the procedure relating thereto;
- (d) the form and manner of making the payment by the declarant and the intimation regarding the withdrawal of appeal;
- (e) the form and manner of the discharge certificate which may be granted to the declarant;
- (f) the manner in which the instructions may be issued and published;
- (g) any other matter which is to be, or may be, prescribed, or in respect of which provision is to be made, by rules.
- (3) The Central Government shall cause every rule made under this Scheme to be laid, as soon as may be after it is made, before each House of Parliament, while it is in session for a total period of thirty days which may be comprised in one session or in two or more successive sessions, and if, before the expiry of the session immediately following the session or the successive sessions aforesaid, both Houses agree in making any modification in the rule or both Houses agree that the rule should not be made, the rule shall thereafter have effect only in such modified form or be of no effect, as the case may be; so, however, that any such modification or annulment shall be without prejudice to the validity of anything previously done under that rule.



133. Power to issue orders, instructions etc. -

(1) The Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs may, from time to time, issue such orders, instructions and directions to the authorities, as it may deem fit, for the proper administration of this Scheme, and such authorities, and all other persons employed in the execution of this Scheme shall observe and follow such orders, instructions and directions:

Provided that no such orders, instructions or directions shall be issued so as to require any designated authority to dispose of a particular case in a particular manner.

- (2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, the Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs may, if it considers necessary or expedient so to do, for the purpose of proper and efficient administration of the Scheme and collection of revenue, issue, from time to time, general or special orders in respect of any class of cases, setting forth directions or instructions as to the guidelines, principles or procedures to be followed by the authorities in the work relating to administration of the Scheme and collection of revenue and any such order may, if the said Board is of opinion that it is necessary in the public interest so to do, be published in the prescribed manner.
- 134. Removal of difficulties. -
 - (1) If any difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of this Scheme, the Central Government may, by order, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Scheme, remove the difficulty:

Provided that no such order shall be made after the

80 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



expiry of a period of two years from the date on which the provisions of this Scheme come into force.

- (2) Every order made under this section shall, as soon as may be after it is made, be laid before each House of Parliament.
- 135. Protection to officers -
 - (1) No suit, prosecution or other legal proceeding shall lie against the Central Government or any officer of the Central Government for anything which is done, or intended to be done in good faith, in pursuance of this Scheme or any rule made thereunder.
 - (2) No proceeding, other than a suit shall be commenced against the Central Government or any officer of the Central Government for anything done or purported to have been done in pursuance of this Scheme, or any rule made thereunder, without giving the Central Government or such officer a prior notice of not less than one month in writing of the intended proceeding and of the cause thereof, or after the expiration of three months from the accrual of such cause.
 - (3) No proceeding shall be commenced against any officer only on the ground of subsequent detection of an error in calculating the amount of duty payable by the declarant, unless there is evidence of misconduct.



SABKA VISHWAS (LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION) SCHEME RULES, 2019

- 1. Short title and commencement.-
 - (1) These rules may be called the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme Rules, 2019.
 - (2) They shall come into force on the 1st day of September, 2019.
- 2. Definitions.-

In these rules, unless the context otherwise requires, -

- (a) "Scheme" means the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019, specified under Chapter V of the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019 (23 of 2019);
- (b) "section" means the section of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2019;
- (c) "Form" means the Form annexed to these rules;
- (d) Words and expressions used in these rules but not defined in these rules and defined in the Scheme shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them in the Scheme.
- 3. Form of declaration under section 125 .-
 - The declaration under section 125 shall be made electronically at https://cbic-gst.gov.in in Form SVLDRS-1 by the declarant, on or before the 31st December, 2019.
 - (2) A separate declaration shall be filed for each case.

Explanation.-For the purpose of this rule, a "case"

82 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



means –

- (a) a show cause notice, or one or more appeal arising out of such notice which is pending as on the 30th day of June, 2019; or
- (b) an amount in arrears; or
- (c) an enquiry or investigation or audit where the amount is quantified on or before the 30th day of June, 2019; or
- (d) a voluntary disclosure.
- 4. Auto acknowledgement.-

On receipt of declaration, an auto acknowledgement bearing a unique reference number shall be generated by the system.

- 5. Constitution of designated committee.-
 - (1) The designated committee under section 126 shall consist of -
 - (a) the Principal Commissioner or Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, and the Additional Commissioner or Joint Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, in a case where the tax dues are more than rupees fifty lakh:

Provided that there shall be only one such designated committee in a Commissionerate of Central Excise and Service Tax;

(b) the Additional Commissioner or Joint Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, and the Deputy Commissioner or Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax,



as the case may be, in a case where the tax dues are rupees fifty lakh or less:

Provided that there will only be one such designated committee in a Commissionerate of Central Excise and Service Tax;

- (c) the Principal Additional Director General (Adjudication) or Additional Director General (Adjudication), Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence (DGGI), and Additional Director or Joint Director, Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence(DGGI), Delhi.
- (2) The members of the designated committee mentioned in clause (a) and (b) of sub-rule (1) shall be nominated by the Principal Chief Commissioner or Chief Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be.
- (3) The members of the designated committee mentioned in clause (c) of sub-rule (1) shall be nominated by Pr. Director General or Director General, Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence (DGGI), as the case may be.
- 6. Verification by designated committee and issue of estimate, etc.-
 - (1) The declaration made under section125, except when it relates to a case of voluntary disclosure of an amount of duty, shall be verified by the designated committee based on the particulars furnished by the declarant as well as the records available with the Department.
 - (2) The statement under sub-sections (1) and (4) of section 127, as the case may be, shall be issued by the designated committee electronically, within a period of sixty days from the date of receipt of the declaration
- 84 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



under sub-rule (1) of rule 3, in Form SVLDRS-3 setting forth therein the particulars of the amount payable:

Provided that no such statement shall be issued in a case where the amount payable, as determined by the designated committee is nil and there is no appeal pending in a High Court or the Supreme Court.

- (3) Where the amount estimated to be payable by the declarant exceeds the amount declared by the declarant, then, the designated committee shall issue electronically, within thirty days of the date of receipt of the declaration under sub-rule (1) of rule 3, in Form SVLDRS-2, an estimate of the amount payable by the declarant along with a notice of opportunity for personal hearing.
- (4) If the declarant wants to indicate agreement or disagreement with the estimate referred to in sub-rule(3) or wants to make written submissions or waive personal hearing or seek an adjournment, he shall file electronically Form SVLDRS-2A indicating the same:

Provided that if no such agreement or disagreement is indicated till the date of personal hearing and the declarant does not appear before the designated committee for personal hearing, the committee shall decide the matter based on available records.

(5) On receipt of a request for an adjournment under sub-rule (4), the designated committee may grant the same electronically in Form SVLDRS-2B:

Provided if the declarant does not appear before the designated committee for personal hearing after adjournment, the committee shall decide the matter based on available records.

(6) Within thirty days of the date of issue of Form



SVLDRS-3, the designated committee may modify its order only to correct an arithmetical error or clerical error, which is apparent on the face of record, on such error being pointed out by the declarant or suomotu by issuing electronically a revised Form SVLDRS-3.

7. Form and manner of making the payment.-

Every declarant shall pay electronically the amount, as indicated in Form SVLDRS-3 issued by the designated committee, within a period of thirty days from the date of its issue.

8. Proof of withdrawal of appeal from High Court or Supreme Court.-

Proof of withdrawal of appeal or writ petition or reference before a High Court or the Supreme Court, as the case may be, under sub-section (7) of section 127 shall be furnished electronically by the declarant.

9. Issue of discharge certificate.-

The designated committee on being satisfied that the declarant has paid in full the amount as determined by it and indicated in Form SVLDRS-3, and on submission of proof of withdrawal of appeal or writ petition or reference referred to in rule 8, if any, shall issue electronically in Form SVLDRS-4 a discharge certificate under sub-section (8) of section 127 within thirty days of the said payment and submission of the said proof, whichever is later:

Provided that in a case where Form SVLDRS-3 has not been issued by the designated committee by virtue of the proviso to sub-rule (2) of rule 6, the discharge certificate shall be issued within thirty days of the filing of declaration referred to in sub-rule (1) of rule 3.



LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION (LDR) RULES

SABKA VISHWAS (LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION) SCHEME RULES, 2019

- 1. Short title and commencement.-
 - (1) These rules may be called the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme Rules, 2019.
 - (2) They shall come into force on the 1st day of September, 2019.
- 2. Definitions.-

In these rules, unless the context otherwise requires, -

- (a) "Scheme" means the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019, specified under Chapter V of the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019 (23 of 2019);
- (b) "section" means the section of the Finance (No. 2) Act, 2019;
- (c) "Form" means the Form annexed to these rules;
- (d) Words and expressions used in these rules but not defined in these rules and defined in the Scheme shall have the meanings respectively assigned to them in the Scheme.
- 3. Form of declaration under section 125 .-
 - (1) The declaration under section 125 shall be made electronically at https://cbic-gst.gov.in in Form SVLDRS-1

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 87



by the declarant ,on or before the 31st December,2019.

(2) A separate declaration shall be filed for each case.

Explanation.-For the purpose of this rule, a "case" means-

- (a) a show cause notice, or one or more appeal arising out of such notice which is pending as on the 30th day of June, 2019; or
- (b) an amount in arrears; or
- (c) an enquiry or investigation or audit where the amount is quantified on or before the 30th day of June, 2019; or
- (d) a voluntary disclosure.
- 4. Auto acknowledgement.-

On receipt of declaration, an auto acknowledgement bearing a unique reference number shall be generated by the system.

- 5. Constitution of designated committee.-
 - (1) The designated committee under section 126 shall consist of -
 - (a) the Principal Commissioner or Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, and the Additional Commissioner or Joint Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, in a case where the tax dues are more than rupees fifty lakh:

Provided that there shall be only one such designated committee in a Commissionerate of Central Excise and Service Tax;

(b) the Additional Commissioner or Joint Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, and the Deputy Commissioner or Assistant Commissioner



of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be, in a case where the tax dues are rupees fifty lakh or less:

Provided that there will only be one such designated committee in a Commissionerate of Central Excise and Service Tax;

- (c) the Principal Additional Director General (Adjudication) or Additional Director General (Adjudication), Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence (DGGI), and Additional Director or Joint Director, Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence(DGGI), Delhi.
- (2) The members of the designated committee mentioned in clause (a) and (b) of sub-rule (1) shall be nominated by the Principal Chief Commissioner or Chief Commissioner of Central Excise and Service Tax, as the case may be.
- (3) The members of the designated committee mentioned in clause (c) of sub-rule (1) shall be nominated by Pr. Director General or Director General, Directorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence (DGGI), as the case may be.
- 6. Verification by designated committee and issue of estimate, etc.-
 - (1) The declaration made under section125, except when it relates to a case of voluntary disclosure of an amount of duty, shall be verified by the designated committee based on the particulars furnished by the declarant as well as the records available with the Department.
 - (2) The statement under sub-sections (1) and (4) of section 127, as the case may be, shall be issued by the designated committee electronically, within a period of sixty days from the date of receipt of the declaration under sub-rule (1) of rule 3, in Form SVLDRS-3 setting forth therein the



particulars of the amount payable:

Provided that no such statement shall be issued in a case where the amount payable, as determined by the designated committee is nil and there is no appeal pending in a High Court or the Supreme Court.

- (3) Where the amount estimated to be payable by the declarant exceeds the amount declared by the declarant, then, the designated committee shall issue electronically, within thirty days of the date of receipt of the declaration under sub-rule (1) of rule 3, in Form SVLDRS-2, an estimate of the amount payable by the declarant along with a notice of opportunity for personal hearing.
- (4) If the declarant wants to indicate agreement or disagreement with the estimate referred to in sub-rule (3) or wants to make written submissions or waive personal hearing or seek an adjournment, he shall file electronically Form SVLDRS-2A indicating the same:

Provided that if no such agreement or disagreement is indicated till the date of personal hearing and the declarant does not appear before the designated committee for personal hearing, the committee shall decide the matter based on available records.

(5) On receipt of a request for an adjournment under subrule (4), the designated committee may grant the same electronically in Form SVLDRS-2B:

Provided if the declarant does not appear before the designated committee for personal hearing after adjournment, the committee shall decide the matter based on available records.

(6) Within thirty days of the date of issue of Form SVLDRS-3, the designated committee may modify its order only to correct an arithmetical error or clerical error, which is



apparent on the face of record, on such error being pointed out by the declarant or suomotu by issuing electronically a revised Form SVLDRS-3.

7. Form and manner of making the payment.-

Every declarant shall pay electronically the amount, as indicated in Form SVLDRS-3 issued by the designated committee, within a period of thirty days from the date of its issue.

8. Proof of withdrawal of appeal from High Court or Supreme Court.-

Proof of withdrawal of appeal or writ petition or reference before a High Court or the Supreme Court, as the case may be, under sub-section (7) of section 127 shall be furnished electronically by the declarant.

9. Issue of discharge certificate.-

The designated committee on being satisfied that the declarant has paid in full the amount as determined by it and indicated in Form SVLDRS-3, and on submission of proof of withdrawal of appeal or writ petition or reference referred to in rule 8, if any, shall issue electronically in Form SVLDRS-4 a discharge certificate under sub-section (8) of section 127 within thirty days of the said payment and submission of the said proof, whichever is later:

Provided that in a case where Form SVLDRS-3 has not been issued by the designated committee by virtue of the proviso to sub-rule (2) of rule 6, the discharge certificate shall be issued within thirty days of the filing of declaration referred to in sub-rule (1) of rule 3.





CBI&C CIRCULAR DATED 27TH AUGUST, 2019

Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX.8, Dated 27.08.2019

F. No. 267/78/2019/CX-8-Pt.III

Government of India

Ministry of Finance

Department of Revenue

Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs

Dated, 27th August, 2019

Dear Madam/Sir,

I am directed to state that the Government has announced the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019 as a part of the recent Union Budget. Further, in accordance with the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019, the Central Government has notified the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme Rules, 2019 as well as issued Notification No. 04/2019 Central Excise-NT dated 21.08.2019 to operationalize this Scheme from 01 .09.2019 to 31.12.2019.

2. As may be appreciated, this Scheme is a bold endeavor to

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 93



unload the baggage relating to the legacy taxes viz. Central Excise and Service Tax that have been subsumed under GST and allow business to make a new beginning, and focus on GST. Therefore, it is incumbent upon all officers and staff of CBIC to partner with the trade and industry to make this Scheme a grand success.

- 3. Dispute resolution and amnesty are the two components of this Scheme. The dispute resolution component is aimed at liquidating the legacy cases locked up in litigation at various forums whereas the amnesty component gives an opportunity to those who have failed to correctly discharge their tax liability to pay the tax dues. As may be seen, this Scheme offers substantial relief to the taxpayers and others who may potentially avail it. Moreover, the Scheme also focuses on the small taxpayers as would be evident from the fact that the extent of relief provided is higher in respect of cases involving lesser duty (smaller taxpayers can generally be expected to face disputes involving relatively lower duty amounts).
- 4. The relief extended under this Scheme is summed up, as follows:
 - (a) For all the cases pending in adjudication or appeal (at any forum), the relief is to the extent of 70% of the duty involved if it is Rs. 50 lakhs or less and 50% if it is more than Rs. 50 lakhs. The same relief is available for cases under investigation and audit where the duty involved is quantified and communicated to the party or admitted by him in a statement on or before 30.06.2019.
 - (b) In cases of confirmed duty demand, where there is no appeal pending, the relief offered is 60% of the confirmed duty amount if the same is Rs. 50 lakhs or less and it is 40% if the confirmed duty amount is more than Rs. 50



lakhs.

- (c) In cases of voluntary disclosure of duty not paid, the full amount of disclosed duty would have to be paid.
- (d) There will be full waiver of interest and penalty under all the categories of cases, as at (a) to (c) above.
- 5. The relief under this Scheme is illustrated, as follows:
 - (i) If the amount of duty (including CENVAT credit) being litigated is Rs.50 lakhs, then the taxpayer only needs to pay only Rs.15 lakhs to settle his case.
 - (ii) If the amount of duty(including CENVAT credit) being litigated is Rs. 1 crore, then the taxpayer only needs to pay only Rs. 50 lakhs to settle his case.
 - (iii) If the amount of duty being litigated is nil, either because the show cause notice was only for penalty or because the duty was deposited at any subsequent stage, and only penalty is being contested, then the taxpayer does not need to deposit anything to settle his case. However, the taxpayer would have to make a declaration under this Scheme.
 - (iv) If the duty (including CENVAT credit) involved during investigation or audit is Rs. 50 lakhs, then the taxpayer only needs to pay Rs.15 lakhs to settle his case.
 - (v) If the amount in arrears is Rs.50 lakhs, then the taxpayer only needs to pay only Rs. 20 lakhs to settle his case.
 - (vi) If the taxpayer makes a voluntary disclosure of Rs. 1 crore, then he will need to pay Rs. 1 crore to settle his case.
- 6. It may be appreciated that the ambit of this Scheme is wide enough to cover all kinds of pending disputes, including call



book cases, except for a few categories. The exclusions are firstly, cases in respect of goods that are still subject to levy of Central Excise such as specified petroleum products and tobacco i.e. goods falling in the Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944. Secondly, cases for which the taxpayer/ noticee has already been convicted in a Court of law. Thirdly, cases under adjudication or litigation where the final hearing has taken place on or before 30.06.2019. Fourthly, cases of erroneous refunds. Lastly, cases which are pending before the Settlement Commission.

- 7. Some of the highlights of this Scheme are that it will be fully automated with a dedicated portal (www.cbic-gst.gov.in) for online filing of declaration and communication of final decision. DG (Systems) will shortly issue a user manual for the online facility being provided to implement this Scheme. This has been done with the objectives of ensuring transparency, speed and accountability in the decision making. There are also fixed timelines for the various processes involved which are to be strictly adhered to so that the entire process of filing of declaration to communication of Department's decision and to payment gets completed within 90 days. This is important as there is no scope for extension of the time period for the sub-processes or the complete process. It is also important to appreciate that while this Scheme indicates various timelines, it is in the common interest of both the taxpayer and the Department that any declaration made thereunder is expeditiously handled well before the indicated timelines. This should be an area of focus for the Designated Committees as well as the supervisory Principal Chief Commissioner/Chief Commissioner concerned.
- 8. Once the declarant produces the proof of payment and withdrawal of appeal in High Court and Supreme Court, if

96 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



applicable, for in cases of lower forums the Scheme provides for deemed withdrawal of appeal, a discharge certificate will be issued indicating a full and final closure of the proceedings in question for both the Department and the taxpayer. It merits mention that every discharge certificate shall be conclusive as to the matter and time period stated therein. The declarant shall be not be liable to pay any further duty, interest or penalty. No matter and time period covered under a discharge certificate shall be reopened in any other proceedings under the said indirect tax enactments. This entails a full waiver from prosecution as well. The only exception is in case of a taxpayer's voluntary disclosure of liability as there is no way to verify its correctness, so a provision is made to reopen such declaration within one year of issue of a discharge certificate, if subsequently any material particular is found to be false.

- 9. Moreover, the scope of discretion has been kept to the minimum by linking the relief under this Scheme to the duty amount which is already known to both the Department and the taxpayer in the form of a show cause notice/order of determination or a written communication. The calculation of relief itself will be automated. Even in case of voluntary disclosure, no verification will be carried out by the Department, Still in the eventuality the declarant seeks the opportunity of being heard, the decision would be taken only after giving him this opportunity.
- 10. Further, the following issues are clarified in the context of the various provisions of the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019 and Rules made thereunder:
 - (a) Section 129(2)(a) provides that no person being a party in appeal, application, revision or reference shall contend that by issuing a discharge certificate, Department has



accepted the disputed position. Section 129(2)(b) further provides that issue of a discharge certificate does not prevent issuance of a show cause notice for the same matter for a subsequent period or for a different matter in the same period. It is clarified that similar position will apply in case of Department also. In other words, a declaration under this Scheme will not be a basis for assuming that the declarant has admitted the position, and no fresh show cause notice will be issued merely on that basis.

- (b) Section 125(1)(d) mentions that the Scheme is not available to an applicant who has been issued a show cause notice relating to refund or erroneous refund. It has potential to lead to an interpretation that such persons will not be able to opt for the Scheme for any other dispute as well, since the restriction is on 'the person' in place of 'the case'. It is clarified that the exception from eligibility is for 'the case' and not 'the person'. In other words, if a person has been issued a show cause notice for a refund/ erroneous refund and, at the same time, he also has other outstanding disputes which are covered under this Scheme, then, he will be eligible to file a declaration(s) for the other case(s). Same position will apply to persons covered under Sections 125(1)(a), (b), (c), (e) and (g).
- (c) This Scheme provides for adjustment of any amount paid as pre-deposit during appellate proceedings or as deposit during enquiry, investigation or audit [Sections 124(2) and 130(2) refer]. In certain matters, tax may have been paid by utilising the input credit, and the matter is under dispute. In such cases, the tax already paid through input credit shall be adjusted by the Designated Committee at the time of determination of the final amount payable


under the Scheme.

- (d) With respect to penalty/late fee matters [Section 124(1)
 (b) refers], a doubt has been expressed that only show cause notices for late fee or penalty are covered under this Scheme as there is no mention of appellate proceedings. It is clarified that the provisions apply to any show cause notice for penalty/late fee, irrespective of the fact that it is under adjudication or appeal. Moreover, there can be a show cause notice that originally also involved a duty demand, and the amount of duty in the said notice became 'nil' whether on account of the fact that same has been paid under this Scheme or otherwise. Such cases are also covered under Section 124(1)(b).
- (e) In case of appeals, the applicant is ineligible to apply if the final hearing is concluded but the order is awaited as on 30.06.2019. The hearings in matters are typically rescheduled even after the final hearing due to new bench, change in officer or any other reason. It is clarified that this restriction will apply to only those cases, where the appellate forum has heard the matter finally as on 30.06.2019.
- (f) Section 125(g) excludes the cases where an application has been filed before the Settlement Commission for settlement. However, in many such cases, proceedings before the Commission may abate due to reasons such as rejection of the application by the Commission or due to order of the Commission not being passed within the prescribed time etc. It is clarified that all such cases which are outside the purview of the Settlement Commission shall be covered under the Scheme under the relevant category of adjudication or appeal or arrears as the case may be



provided the eligibility is otherwise established under this Scheme. Further, any pending appeals, reference or writ petition filed against or any arrears emerging out of the orders of Settlement Commission are also eligible under the Scheme.

- (g) Cases under an enquiry, investigation or audit where the duty demand has been quantified on or before the 30th day of June, 2019 are eligible under the Scheme. Section 2(r) defines "quantified" as a written communication of the amount of duty payable under the indirect tax enactment. It is clarified that such written communication will include a letter intimating duty demand; or duty liability admitted by the person during enquiry, investigation or audit; or audit report etc.
- (h) Rule 3(2) of the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme Rules, 2019 provides that a separate declaration shall be filed for each case. Many a times a show cause notice covers multiple matters concerning duty liability. It is clarified that a declarant cannot opt to avail benefit of scheme in respect of selected matters. In other words, the declarant has to file a declaration for all the matters concerning duty liability covered under the show cause notice.
- (i) Section 124(1) (b) provides that where the tax dues are relatable to a show cause notice for late fee or penalty only, and the amount of duty in the said notice has been paid or is 'nil', then, the entire amount of late fee or penalty will be waived. This section, inter alia, covers cases of penal action against co-noticees. In case of a show cause notice demanding duty/tax from main taxpayer and proposing penal action against co-noticees, it is clarified that the co-



noticees can't avail the benefits of the scheme till such time the duty demand is not settled. Once, the main-noticee discharges the duty demand, the co-noticees can apply under this Scheme. This will also cover cases where the main noticee has settled the matter before the Settlement Commission and paid the dues and in which co-noticees were not a party to the proceedings before the Settlement Commission.

- (j) Section 127(5) of the Scheme provides that the declarant shall pay the amount indicated in the Statement issued by the Designated Committee within a period of thirty days. If the declarant does not pay the amount within the stipulated time, due to any reason, the declaration will be treated as lapsed.
- (k) In respect of matters under investigation by DGGI, there may be cases where the duty quantified relates to more than one Commissionerate. In such cases, the Designated Committee of the Commissionerate involving the maximum amount of duty will decide the case. Further, in other cases of DGGI wherein the show cause notice that has been issued covers more than one Commissionerate, a common adjudicator must be quickly appointed under intimation to the Chief Commissioner concerned and DG Systems so the Designated Committee of that Commissionerate can finalize this matter.
- 11 In order to make this Scheme a success, the following actions are required to be taken on priority:
 - (i) It shall be ensured that the updated and complete records of the cases eligible under the Scheme are made available to the Designated Committees by 31.08.2019. It may be noted that except for voluntary disclosure, the information



regarding eligible taxpayers is readily available with the field formations through show cause notices which are yet to be adjudicated, or cases which are pending at various appellate forums or the cases under investigation or audit where the duty demand has been quantified and communicated on or before 30.06.2019 or the cases of recoverable arrears.

- (ii) An intensive out-reach programme to create awareness among the trade and industry at large and the eligible taxpayers in particular needs to be carried out. In this direction it will also be desirable to communicate to the eligible taxpayers the benefits of this Scheme through a polite email or phone call or letter. For these purposes the publicity material prepared by DGTPS can be used. Also. registration details of such eligible taxpayers shall be conveyed to DG (Systems) so that periodic SMS can be sent to them, informing about this Scheme.
- (iii) Though this Scheme provides a period of sixty days for the Designated Committee to decide on a declaration filed by a taxpayer, a speedier disposal is expected by the Board. For instance, in cases of voluntary disclosure, no verification is necessitated which means that the declaration will be accepted as such. Hence, such cases must be finalized within 15 days of filing of the declaration. Similarly, as the duty amount is already known in the form of a show cause notice/order of determination or a written communication/ or order in appeal or disputed amount in appeal, and the tax-relief will be calculated by the system automatically, where these particulars are found to be correct as per the declaration filed and the records available with the Department, such cases must also be finalized within 15 days of filing of the declaration. These timelines must be



strictly adhered to.

- (iv)There shall be two Designated Committees of two officers each in a Commissionerate to process the declarations received thereunder (for this purpose Audit Commissionerates are to be left out). The Designated Committees have been set up based on the amount of tax dues. For removal of doubts, it is, hereby, clarified that this duty demand is before applying the tax-relief. For example, if in a show cause notice the duty demanded is Rs. 60 lakhs, the same will fall under the purview of a Committee consisting of Principal Commissioner/Commissioner and Additional/Joint Commissioner even though the final duty payable after applying tax-relief will be less than Rs. 50 lakhs. Essentially, where the duty payable as determined by the Designated Committee comes out to be more or less than the amount declared by the taxpayer, there will no change in the composition of the Designated Committee. In other words, the same Designated Committee to which the declaration is automatically routed based on the amount mentioned therein will take a final decision in the matter. The members of the Committee will be nominated by jurisdictional Principal Chief Commissioner/Chief Commissioner and Principal Director General/ Director General, DGGI, as the case may be. It is expected that the Designated Committee will be prompt in decision making by consensus and the senior officer in the Committee will take a lead to ensure the same.
- (v) It shall be the responsibility of the Zonal Principal Chief Commissioners/Chief Commissioners and Principal Director General/ Director General. DGGI (in the case of DGGI, Delhi) to ensure the success of the Scheme. Apart from the reach-out programme outlined at (i) above, it also





needs to be ensured that the members of the Designated Committee are properly trained and well versed with the Scheme and the software application. In this connection DG (NACIN) has been instructed to carry out suitable training.

12. The Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019 has the potential to liquidate the huge outstanding litigation and free the taxpayers from the burden of litigation and investigation under the legacy taxes. The administrative machinery of the Government will also be able to fully focus on helping the taxpayers in the smooth implementation of GST. Thus, the importance of making this Scheme a grand success cannot be overstated. The Principal Chief Commissioners/ Principal Directors General/Chief Commissioners/Directors General and all officers and staff are instructed to familiarize themselves with this Scheme and actively ensure its smooth implementation.



CBI&C CIRCULAR DATED 25TH SEPTEMBER, 2019

Circular No. 1072/05/2019-CX

F. No. 267/78/2019/CX-8-Pt.III

Government of India Ministry of Finance Department of Revenue Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs

Dated, 25th September, 2019

Subject: Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 201 9-reg

Dear Madam/Sir,

I am directed to invite your attention to Board's Circular No. 1071/4/2019-CX.8 dated 27thAugust, 2019 on the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019. Subsequently, the Board has received references from field formations as well as from the trade seeking certain clarifications on the Scheme.

Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019 105



- 2. The references received by the Board have been examined, and the issues raised therein are clarified in the context of the various provisions of the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019 and Rules made thereunder, as follows:
 - (i) Only the persons who are eligible in terms of Section 125 can file a declaration under the Scheme. The eligibility conditions are captured in Form SVLDRS-1 (Sr. No. 8). The system automatically disallows persons who are not eligible from filing a declaration. However, there is a possibility that such ineligible persons may still make a declaration by selecting an incorrect response. For instance, under Sr. No. 8.1, the person making a declaration has to indicate whether he/she has been convicted for an offence for the matter for which the declaration is being made. If, the answer is 'Yes', then the person is ineligible and is not allowed to proceed further by the system. However, such person is able to file a declaration if he/she incorrectly indicates 'No' as the answer even though he/she has been convicted. Such declarations are void and do not merit consideration under the Scheme. Such persons may be informed of their ineligibility through a letter.
 - (ii) Section 124(1)(a) outlines the relief available in the case of one or more appeals arising out of a Show Cause Notice. Such an appeal may have been filed either by the party or by the department. Further, Section 127(6) provides for deemed withdrawal of such appeals filed by a declarant pending at a forum other than the Supreme Court or High Court. It is clarified that such deemed withdrawal will also be applicable for departmental appeals. Further, where a departmental appeal, reference or writ petition is pending before the Supreme Court or High Court, the department will file an application for withdrawal of such



appeal, reference or writ petition after issuance of the discharge certificate. Similarly, if prosecution has already been launched, the procedure as laid down in Circular No. 100911612015-CX dated 23-10-2015 should be followed for withdrawal of prosecution after issuance of discharge certificate.

- (iii) One of the category of cases for which a declaration can be made under the Scheme is where the declarant has filed a return but not paid duty. It is possible that a taxpayer may not have paid duty in case of multiple returns. It may be noted that Rule 3 of the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme Rules, 2019 provides that a separate declaration shall be filed for each case. Further, in terms of the Explanation to Rule 3, in case of arrears, a case means an amount in arrears'. Section 121(c)(iii) defines an amount in arrears as the duty recoverable on account of the declarant having filed a return but not paying duty. Since the amount in arrears pertains to a return, a separate declaration will need to be filed for each such return.
- (iv) Section 121(c) defines an amount in arrears as the amount of duty which is recoverable as arrears of duty. Further, Section 123 defines tax dues' in respect of arrears as the amount which is due in arrears. In other words, tax dues is the amount of duty which is outstanding against the declarant. This is the net amount after deducting the dues that he has already paid. Such payment may be in the form of pre-deposits appropriated or paid subsequently by the taxpayer voluntarily against the outstanding amount. It is clarified that the relief available under Section 124(1)(c) will be applied to the net outstanding amount so arrived at. It may be noted that in respect of all other categories, any money paid before its appropriation is in the nature



of a deposit only. Hence, in respect of declarations made under these other categories, the relief will be applied to the outstanding amount and, only thereafter the predeposits/deposits [Section 124(2)] shall be adjusted. The same is illustrated as follows:

- (a) Taxpayer has outstanding arrears of confirmed duty demand of Rs. 1 crore and he has already paid Rs. 60 lakhs. So, the amount of tax dues is Rs 40 lakhs. After applying applicable relief @ 60%, the amount payable under the Scheme is Rs 16 lakhs.
- (b) Taxpayer has outstanding arrears of confirmed duty demand of Rs 1 crore apart from Rs 20 lakh penalty and interest as applicable. He has already paid Rs 1 cr towards duty. So, the amount of tax dues is zero, and the amount payable under the Scheme is zero.
- (v) It may so happen that on being pointed out by audit etc, the taxpayer may in some cases deposit the duty without interest. In such cases, a Show Cause Notice is generally issued for appropriating the duty deposited and demanding the applicable interest. It is clarified that such cases are covered under the Scheme. However, in no case will a refund of the duty paid be made to the taxpayer.
- (vi)Section 125(1)(f) bars a person from making voluntary disclosure after being subjected to an enquiry or investigation or audit. Further, what constitutes an enquiry or investigation or audit has also been defined [Sections 121(g) and 121(m)]. A doubt has been expressed as to whether benefit of the Scheme would be available in cases where documents like balance sheet, profit and loss account etc. are called for by department, while quoting authority of Section 14 of the Central Excise Act, 1944 etc.



It is clarified that the Designated Committee concerned may take a view on merit, taking into account the facts and circumstances of each case as to whether the provisions of Section 125(1)(f) are attracted in such cases.

- (vii)Section 125(1)(a) excludes cases which are under appeal and where final hearing has taken place on or before 30th June, 2019 from the purview of the Scheme. Similar exclusion has been made applicable, mutatis mutandis, under Section 125(1)(c) to cases under adjudication. It is clarified that such cases, however, may still fall under the arrears category once the appellate or adjudication order, as the case may be, is passed and has attained finality or appeal period is over, and other requirements under the Scheme are fulfilled.
- (viii)Section 121(c) (i) and (ii) define an amount in arrears" as the amount of duty which is recoverable, inter alia, on account of no appeal having been filed by the declarant against an order or order in appeal before the expiry of the period of time for filing of appeal or the order in appeal having attained finality. There may be situations where the taxpayer does not want to file an appeal even though the time period for filing of appeal is not over. It is clarified that in such cases, the taxpayer can file a declaration under the Scheme provided he gives in writing to the department that he will not file an appeal. This declaration shall be binding on the taxpayer.
- 3. Difficulty if any, in implementation of this Circular may be brought to the notice of the Board.





FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

SABKA VISHWAS (LEGACY DISPUTE RESOLUTION) SCHEME, 2019 - Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

Notes:

- 1. For Scheme details please refer to the Finance (No.2) Act, 2019.
- 2. The 'sections' referred below are those of the Finance (No.2) Act,2019.
- 3. In case of any apparent inconsistency between the contents of these FAQs and the statutory provisions, the latter shall prevail.

- Q1. Who is eligible to file declaration under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019?
- **Ans.** Any person falling under the following categories is eligible, subject to other conditions, to file a declaration under the Scheme:
 - (a) Who has a show cause notice (SCN) for demand of duty/tax or one or more pending appeals arising out of such notice where the final hearing has not taken place as on 30.06.2019.
 - (b) Who has been issued SCN for penalty and late fee only and where the final hearing has not taken place as on 30.06.2019.



- (c) Who has recoverable arrears pending.
- (d) Who has cases under investigation and audit where the duty/tax involved has been quantified and communicated to him or admitted by him in a statement on or before 30th June, 2019.
- (e) Who wants to make a voluntary disclosure.

Q2. What are the statutes covered under the Scheme?

- **Ans.** This Scheme is applicable to the following enactments, namely:—
 - (a) The Central Excise Act, 1944 or the Central Excise Tariff Act, 1985 or Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 and the rules made thereunder;
 - (b) The following Acts, namely:-
 - (i) The Agricultural Produce Cess Act, 1940;
 - (ii) The Coffee Act, 1942;
 - (iii) The Mica Mines Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1946;
 - (iv) The Rubber Act, 1947;
 - (v) The Salt Cess Act, 1953;
 - (vi) The Medicinal and Toilet Preparations (Excise Duties) Act,1955;
 - (vii) The Additional Duties of Excise (Goods of Special Importance)Act, 1957;
 - (viii) The Mineral Products (Additional Duties of Excise and Customs)Act, 1958;
 - (ix) The Sugar (Special Excise Duty) Act, 1959;
 - (x) The Textiles Committee Act, 1963;
 - (xi) The Produce Cess Act, 1966;
 - (xii) The Limestone and Dolomite Mines Labour



Welfare Fund Act, 1972;

- (xiii) The Coal Mines (Conservation and Development) Act, 1974;
- (xiv) The Oil Industry (Development) Act, 1974;
- (xv) The Tobacco Cess Act, 1975;
- (xvi) The Iron Ore Mines, Manganese Ore Mines and Chrome Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Act, 1976;
- (xvii) The Bidi Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1976;
- (xviii) The Additional Duties of Excise (Textiles and Textile Articles)Act, 1978;
- (xix) The Sugar Cess Act, 1982;
- (xx) The Jute Manufacturers Cess Act, 1983;
- (xxi) The Agricultural and Processed Food Products Export Cess Act, 1985;
- (xxii) The Spices Cess Act, 1986;
- (xxiii) The Finance Act, 2004;
- (xxiv) The Finance Act, 2007;
- (xxv) The Finance Act, 2015;
- (xxvi) The Finance Act, 2016;
- (c) Any other Act, as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, specify.

Q3. If an enquiry or investigation or audit has started but the tax dues have not been quantified whether the person is eligible to opt for the Scheme?

Ans. No. If an audit, enquiry or investigation has started, and the amount of duty/duty payable has not been quantified on or before 30th June, 2019, the person shall not be eligible to opt for the Scheme.



- Q4. If a SCN covers multiple issues, whether the person can file an application under the Scheme for only few issues covered in the SCN?
- **Ans.** No. A person cannot opt to avail benefit of the Scheme in respect of selected matters. He must file a declaration in respect of all the matters concerning duty/tax liability covered under the SCN.
- Q5. What is the scope of duty/tax relief covered under section 124(1)(b) with respect to SCN for late fee and penalty only where the amount of duty/tax in the said notice has been paid or is nil?
- **Ans.** The relief shall be of the entire amount of late fee or penalty.
- Q6. I have filed an appeal before the appellate forum [Commissioner (Appeals)/CESTAT] and such appeal has been heard finally on or before the 30th day of June, 2019. Am I eligible for the Scheme?
- **Ans.** No, you are not eligible in view of section 125(1)(a).
- Q7. What is the scope under the Scheme when adjudication order determining the duty/tax liability is passed and received prior to 30.06.2019, but the appeal is filed on or after 01.07.2019?
- **Ans.** Such a person shall not be eligible to file a declaration under the Scheme.
- Q8. I have been convicted for an offence punishable under a provision of the indirect tax enactment. Am I eligible for the Scheme?
- **Ans.** If the conviction is for the same matter and time period for which the declaration is proposed to be filed, then you are not eligible to avail the Scheme.

Q9. I have been issued a SCN and the final hearing has

114 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



taken place on or before30.06.2019. Am I eligible for the Scheme?

- **Ans.** No, you are not eligible as per section 125(1)(c).
- Q10. I have been issued a SCN for an erroneous refund or refund. Am I eligible for the Scheme?
- **Ans.** No, as per section 125(1)(d) you are not eligible to make a declaration under the Scheme in respect of an SCN issued for an erroneous refund or refund.
- Q11. I have been subjected to an enquiry or investigation or audit and the amount of duty/tax involved therein has not been quantified on or before 30.06.2019. Am I eligible for the Scheme?
- **Ans.** No, as per section 125(1)(e) you are not eligible to file a declaration in respect of such an enquiry or investigation or audit.
- Q12. I have been subjected to an enquiry or investigation or audit under indirect tax enactment and I want to make a voluntary disclosure regarding the same. Am I eligible for the Scheme?
- Ans. No, you are not eligible to make a declaration under the voluntary disclosure category as per section 125(1)(f)(i).
- Q13. There is an apparent contradiction between the provisions of section125(1)(f)(ii) and section 124(1)(c)(iii). Can you elaborate?
- **Ans.** Section 125(1)(f)(ii) is an exception to voluntary disclosure category. In other words, a person having filed a return but has not deposited the duty/tax cannot make a voluntary disclosure in respect of the same since the liability already stands disclosed to the Department. On the other hand, section124(1)(c)(iii) is a sub-set of the 'arrears' category, meaning thereby that in respect of such



return a declaration can only be filed under the arrears category. As such, there is no contradiction between the two provisions.

Q14. I have filed an application in the Settlement Commission for settlement of the case. Am I eligible for the Scheme?

- **Ans.** No, you are not eligible to file a declaration for a case which is still pending with the Settlement Commission.
- Q15. I deal with the goods which are presently under Central Excise and are mentioned in the Fourth Schedule to the Central Excise Act, 1944. I want to make declarations with respect to these excisable goods. Am I eligible for the Scheme?
- **Ans.** No, you are not eligible to avail the benefits under the Scheme.
- Q16. How will I apply for the said Scheme?
- Ans. All eligible persons are required to file an electronic declaration at the portalhttps://cbic-gst.gov.in in Form SVLDRS 1.

Q17. Will I get an acknowledgement for filing a declaration electronically?

Ans. Yes, on receipt of your declaration, an auto acknowledgement bearing a unique reference number will be generated by the system and sent to you. This unique number will be useful for all future references. The declaration will automatically be routed to the Designated Committee that will finalize your case.

Q18. How will I come to know about the final decision taken by the designated committee on my declaration?

- **Ans.** Within sixty days of filing of a declaration, you will be informed electronically about the final decision taken in
- 116 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



the matter.

- Q19. What is the difference between 'Tax Dues' and 'Tax Relief'?
- **Ans.** 'Tax Dues' is the total outstanding duty/tax demand. 'Tax Relief' is the concession the Scheme offers from the total outstanding duty demand.
- Q20. A SCN has been issued to me for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. In the Order in Original (OIO) the duty confirmed I of Rs.1000 and an amount of Rs.100 has been imposed as penalty. I have filed an appeal against this order before the Appellate Authority. What will be the tax dues for me?
- **Ans.** The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs.1000 and hence the tax dues will be Rs.1000.
- Q21. A SCN has been issued to me for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. In the OIO the duty confirmed is of Rs.900 and penalty imposed is Rs.90. I have filed an appeal against this order. The department has not filed any appeal in the matter. What would be the tax dues?
- **Ans.** The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs.900 and hence the tax dues are Rs.900.
- Q22. A SCN has been issued for an amount of duty of Rs.1000 and an amount of penalty of Rs.100. In the OIO the duty confirmed is of Rs.900 and penalty imposed is Rs.90. I have filed an appeal against this order before the Appellate Authority. Further, Department has also filed an appeal before the Appellate Authority for an amount of duty of Rs.100 and penalty of Rs.10. What would be the tax dues?
- Ans. The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs.900 plus



Rs.100 i.e.Rs.1000 and hence tax dues are Rs.1000.

- Q23. A SCN has been issued for an amount of duty of Rs.1000. The Adjudicating Authority confirmed the duty of Rs.1000. I have filed an appeal against this order. The first appellate authority Commissioner Appeals/CESTAT reduced the amount of duty to Rs.900. I have filed a second appeal (before CESTAT/ High Court. The department has not filed any appeal. What will be the tax dues for me?
- **Ans.** The amount of duty which is being disputed is Rs.900 and hence the tax dues are Rs.900.
- Q24. I have been issued a SCN under any of the indirect tax enactment on or before 30.06.2019, what will be the tax dues?
- **Ans.** As per section 123(b), the tax dues will be the amount of duty/tax/cess stated to be payable in the SCN.
- Q25. What is the coverage of SCNs under the Scheme with respect to main noticee vis-à-vis co-noticee particularly when the tax amount has already been paid by the main notices outside the Scheme?
- **Ans.** In case of a SCN issued to an assessee demanding duty/ tax and also proposing penal action against him as well as separate penal action against the co-noticee/s specified therein, if the main noticee has settled the tax dues, the conoticee/s can opt for the Scheme for the waiver of penalty. For instance, the main noticee has settled the matter before the Settlement Commission and paid the dues and the co-noticees were not a party to the proceedings. In such a case, the co-noticees can file a declaration under the Scheme.

Q26. What is the scope of coverage of periodical SCNs under the Scheme?

118 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



Ans. Any SCN issued whether main or periodical, where the final hearing has not taken place on or before 30.06.2019 is eligible under the Scheme.

Q27. What are the benefits available under the Scheme?

- **Ans.** The various benefits available under the Scheme are:
 - Total waiver of interest and penalty
 - Immunity from prosecution
 - In cases pending in adjudication or appeal, a relief of 70% from the duty/tax demand if it is Rs. 50 lakhs or less and of 50%, if it is more than Rs. 50 lakhs. The same relief is available for cases under enquiry, investigation and audit where the duty involved is quantified on or before 30.06.2019.
 - In case of an amount in arrears, the relief is 60% of the confirmed duty/tax amount if the same is Rs. 50 lakhs or less and it is 40% in other cases.
 - In cases of voluntary disclosure, the declarant will have to pay full amount of disclosed duty/tax.
- Q28. Shall the pre-deposit paid at any stage of appellate proceedings and deposit paid during enquiry, investigation or audit be taken into account for calculating relief under the Scheme?
- **Ans.** Yes, any amount paid as pre-deposit at any stage of appellate proceedings under the indirect tax enactment or as deposit during enquiry, investigation or audit, shall be adjusted while issuing the statement indicating the amount payable by the declarant.

Q29. Whether the declarant will be given an opportunity of being heard or not?

Ans. Yes, as per section 127(2) and (3), after the issue of



the estimate, the Designated Committee shall give an opportunity of being heard to the declarant, if he so desires, in case of a disagreement.

Q30. What will be procedure and time period of payment to be made by the declarant?

Ans. The declarant shall pay electronically within 30 days of the statement issued by the Designated Committee, the amount payable as indicated therein.

Q31. What procedure will be followed for withdrawal of appeals where the person has filed a declaration under the Scheme?

Ans. Where the declarant has filed an appeal or reference against any order or notice giving rise to the tax dues, before the appellate forum, other than the Supreme Court or the High Court, then, such appeal or reference or reply shall be deemed to have been withdrawn. In case of a writ petition or appeal or reference before any High Court or the Supreme Court, the declarant shall file an application before such High Court or the Supreme Court for withdrawing the writ petition, appeal or reference and after its withdrawal with the leave of the Court, he shall furnish proof of such withdrawal to the Designated Committee.

Q32. Whether any certificate will be provided to declarant as proof to payment of dues?

Ans. Yes, on payment of the amount indicated in the statement and production of proof of withdrawal of appeal, wherever applicable, the Designated Committee shall issue a discharge certificate in electronic form, within 30 days of the said payment and production of proof, whichever is later.

Q33. Whether a calculation error in statement may be

120 Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019



rectified or not?

Ans. Yes, within 30 days of the date of issue of a statement indicating the amount payable by the declarant, the Designated Committee may modify its order only to correct an arithmetical error or clerical error, which is apparent on the face of record, on such error being pointed out by the declarant or suo-motu.

Q34. What will be the benefits of discharge certificate issued under the Scheme?

- **Ans.** Every discharge certificate issued under section 127 with respect to the amount payable under the Scheme shall be conclusive as to the matter and time period stated therein, and:
 - (a) the declarant shall not be liable to pay any further duty/ tax, interest, or penalty with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration;
 - (b) the declarant shall not be liable to be prosecuted under the indirect tax enactment with respect to the matter and time period covered in the declaration; and
 - (c) no matter and time period covered by such declaration shall be reopened in any other proceeding under the indirect tax enactment.

Q35. Can I take input tax credit for any amount paid under the Scheme?

- Ans. No.
- Q36. Can I pay any amount under the Scheme through the input tax credit account under the indirect tax enactment or any other Act?
- Ans. No.
- Q37. Can I take a refund of an amount deposited under



the Scheme?

- Ans. No.
- Q38. In cases where pre-deposit or other deposit already paid exceeds the amount payable as indicated in the statement of the designated committee, the difference shall be refunded or not?
- **Ans.** No, it shall not be refunded.
- Q39. Is there any benefit, concession or immunity for the declarant in any proceedings other than those in relation to the matter and time period to which the declaration has been made?
- Ans. No.
- Q40. Whether the discharge certificate under the Scheme would serve as immunity against issuance of any further SCN (i) for the same matter for a subsequent time period; or (ii) for a different matter for the same time period?
- **Ans.** No, as per section 129 (2)(b), the issue of the discharge certificate with respect to a matter for a time period shall not preclude the issue of a SCN, (i) for the same matter for a subsequent time period; or (ii) for a different matter for the same time period.

Q41. What action would be taken against a declarant who makes false voluntary disclosure under the Scheme?

Ans. As per section 129(2)(c), in cases of voluntary disclosure, where any material particular furnished in the declaration is subsequently found to be false, within a period of one year of issue of the discharge certificate, it shall be presumed as if the declaration was never made and proceedings under the applicable indirect tax enactment shall be instituted.



- Q42. Does intimation for audit received by the taxpayer prior to 30.06.2019seeking details qualify for the Scheme?
- **Ans.** No, if the duty/tax payable has not been quantified as on 30.06.2019 the taxpayer is not eligible to make a declaration regarding this audit under the Scheme.
- Q43. I have received an intimation for audit, enquiry or investigation on or before30.06.2019. Can I make a voluntary disclosure of my liability?
- Ans. No.
- Q44. Can taxpayer opt for the benefit under the Scheme in case of periodical notices without opting for it in respect of the main notice?
- Ans. Yes.
- Q45. If the main noticee avails benefit of the Scheme whether Directors whose appeals are pending in respect of penalty only get a waiver of the penalty?
- **Ans.** Yes. Co-noticees cannot avail the benefits of the Scheme only till such time that the duty/tax demand has not been settled. Once the main noticee discharges the duty/tax demand, the co-noticees can apply under the Scheme.
- Q46. If a person has been issued a SCN for a refund/ erroneous refund and, at the same time, he also has other outstanding disputes which are covered under this Scheme, then, will he be eligible to file a declaration(s) for the other case(s)?
- **Ans.** Yes. The exception from eligibility is for 'the case' and not 'the person'.
- Q47. If I file a declaration under the Scheme, will it be assumed that I have admitted to the position and agree with the allegations made in the show cause



notice?

- **Ans.** No. A declaration under the Scheme will not be a basis for assuming that the declarant has admitted the position and no fresh show cause notice will be issued merely on that basis.
- Q48. With respect to penalty/late fee matters, whether only SCNs for late fee or penalty are covered under this Scheme or also such cases under appellate proceedings?
- **Ans.** The Scheme is applicable to any SCN for penalty/late fee, irrespective of whether it is under adjudication or appeal.
- Q49. I had made an application to the Settlement Commission for settlement of my case. However these proceedings abated due to rejection of the application by the Settlement Commission or other reason/s and the case went back to the adjudicating authority for further action. Can I avail the benefit of the Scheme with respect to this case?
- **Ans.** Yes. A declaration under the Scheme can be made for a case which is no longer with the Settlement Commission if other conditions of the Scheme are satisfied.
- Q50. I have filed a writ petition challenging the order of the Settlement Commission. Can I make a declaration under the Scheme with respect to this case?
- **Ans.** Yes. A declaration can be filed under the Scheme if no application is pending before the Settlement Commission and the Writ Petition has not been heard finally on or before 30.06.2019.
- Q51. With respect to cases under enquiry, investigation or audit what is meant by 'written communication' quantifying demand?



- **Ans.** Written communication will include a letter intimating duty/ tax demand or duty/tax liability admitted by the person during enquiry, investigation or audit or audit report etc.
- Q52. I have already paid duty/tax by utilising the input credit, and the matter is under dispute. Will this duty/tax already paid through input credit be adjusted against my duty/tax liability calculated under the Scheme?
- **Ans.** Yes. In such cases, duty/tax already paid through input credit shall be adjusted by the Designated Committee at the time of determination of final amount payable under the Scheme.

Q53. Which is the Form through which I can make a declaration under the Scheme?

Ans. Form SVLDRS1 is the form that has to be filled for making a declaration. The form is required to be filled and submitted electronically and shall be available at the portal https://cbic-gst.gov.in

Q54. I do not agree with the estimate of the Designated Committee. Will I be given a personal hearing?

Ans. Yes. A date of personal hearing is intimated alongwith the estimate issued by the Designated Committee in Form SVLDRS2. Written submissions can be made, personal hearing can be waived, and one adjournment of the personal hearing can also be sought through Form SVLDRS 2A. These forms are available at the portal https://cbic-gst.gov.in and are submitted electronically.

Q55. I have received a communication of the amount payable in Form SVLDRS3.How do I make the duty/ tax payment?

Ans. A challan can be generated by a link provided in the Form SVLDRS3 issued by the department. Once the challan is



generated, payment against the same can be made by the taxpayer.

- Q56. How do I intimate the department about withdrawal of appeal by me?
- **Ans.** Form SVLDRS3 provides a document upload facility for furnishing proof of withdrawal.
- Q57. Are disputes pertaining to Cenvat credit covered under the Scheme?
- **Ans.** Yes, they are included unless covered by a specific exclusion.
- Q58. What happens if I do not make the payment of the amount specified in the statement within 30 days of its issue?
- **Ans.** The declaration shall be treated as lapsed and benefits of the Scheme will no longer be available.
- Q.59 The amount quantified under an enquiry, investigation or audit on or before30.06.2019 gets modified subsequently due to any reason. Will I still be eligible to file a declaration under the Scheme?
- **Ans.** Only such cases of enquiry, investigation or audit are covered under the Scheme where the duty/tax demand has been worked out on or before 30.06.2019but SCN has not been issued.
- Q.60 The duty demand in an SCN issued to me was dropped by the adjudicating authority. However, the department has filed an appeal. I have not filed any appeal in the matter. Will this case by eligible under the Scheme.
- Ans. Yes.

PUBLICATIONS OF TAX RESEARCH DEPARTMENT



T on Educationa Sector Guidance Note on Annual Return of GST Handbook on Works Contract under GST



Hand Book on Export under GST



Hand Book on E-way Bill



Hand Book on Tax Deducted at Source



Impact of GST on MSME Sector



Input Tax Credit (ITC) - An indept Discussion



Taxation on Cooperative Sector



International Taxation and Transfer Pricing

Action Plan:

- 1. Successful conduct of Certificate Course on GST.
- Publication and Circulation of Tax bulletin (both in electronic and printed formats) for the awareness and knowledge updation of stakeholders, members, traders, Chambers of Commerce, Universities.
- 3. Publication of Handbooks on Taxation related topics helping stakeholders in their job deliberations.
- 4. Carry out webinars for the Capacity building of Members Trainers in the locality to facilitate the traders/registered dealers.
- Conducting Seminars and workshops on industry specific issues, in association with the Trade associations/ Traders/ Chamber of commerce in different location on practical issues/aspects associated with GST.
- 6. Tendering representation to the Government on practical difficulties faced by the stakeholders in Taxation related matters.
- 7. Updating Government about the steps taken by the Institute in removing the practical difficulties in implementing various Tax Laws including GST.
- 8. Facilitating general public other than members through GST Help-Desk opened at Head quarter of the Institute and other places of country.
- 9. Introducing advance level courses for the professionals on GST and Income Tax.
- 10. Extending Crash Courses on Taxation to Corporates, Universities, Trade Associations etc.

"Behind Every Successful Business Decision, there is always a CMA"



HEADQUARTERS

CMA Bhawan 12, Sudder Street, Kolkata - 700 016 Ph: +91-33-2252-1031/34/35/1602/1492/1619/7373/7143 Fax: +91-33-2252-7993/1026/1723

> Tax Research Department Email: trd@icmai.in Contact No. - +91 33 40364747/ +91 33 40364714/+91 33 40364711



THE INSTITUTE OF COST ACCOUNTANTS OF INDIA Statutory Body under an Act of Parliament

www.icmai.in

Behind Every Successful Business Decision, there is always a CMA